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BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
Sh. Indra Deva Dayal 

Chairman and Nominee of JKSPDCL 
DIN: 09189651 

Shri Indra Deva Dayal is a Civil Engineering graduate of 1979 batch from BHUIT, now IIT, Varanasi. 
He has been holding the position of Chairman-Nominee Director of Govt. of UT of J&K on the Board 
of the Company since its incorporation on 01.06.2021. 
Shri Dayal joined NHPC in 1980 as Executive Trainee and reached to the level of Executive Director. 
Subsequently achieved Diploma in Management degree from IGNOU. He has vast experience in 
Hydro Sector of more than 40 years of working in different projects such as Salal, Dhaleshwari, 
Tanakpur, Chamera-I, Design & Engg, Dam Safety (O&M), Omkareshwar, Parbati-II, Parbati-III, 
Contract etc. He is Strategist cum Implementer in managing Hydro Power Projects from Concept to 
Commissioning. 
Under his dynamic leadership, Omkareshwar Project (520 MW) was commissioned in record time 
before schedule and the project received award of best early commissioned project by Govt of India. 
He was nodal officer nominated by NHPC for implementation, monitoring and commissioning of 
Teesta-III project (1200 MW), Sikkim. AS Design head, Sh. Dayal was also instrumental in providing 
timely technical/design support and the project was commissioned in anticipated time. 
He is life member of ISRMTT (Indian Society of Rock Mechanics & tunnelling Technology), INHA 
(India National Hydro Association) and ICA (Indian Council of Arbitration) and also represented 
NHPC in CBIP, INCOLD and Dam Safety Incharge to CWC. He published many technical papers and 
also visited France, Netherlands, Bhutan, Ethiopia and Hungary in connection to Hydro Projects. 
Sh. Dayal has excellence as a Team Leader for expediting Hydro Projects and meeting the set 
targets. 

 
Sh. Vivek Bharadwaj, IAS 

Nominee of JKSPDCL 
DIN: 02847409 

Shri Vivek Bharadwaj is a 1990 batch Indian Administrative Service Officer. Initially from West Bengal 
cadre where he has served in different capacities, he has also been on Central deputation and is 
currently on deputation to the AGMUT cadre (Jammu and Kashmir segment). He is presently posted 
as Finance Commissioner (Additional Chief Secretary), Finance Department, Govt. of J&K. He has 
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been appointed on the Board of the Company w.e.f. 21.06.2022. He has earlier served on the Boards 
of several companies in West Bengal and was on the Board of Coal India in 2017 apart from South 
Eastern Coal Fields Limited. 
Shri Bharadwaj has done his schooling from Mayo College and Demonstration School, Ajmer. He 
holds B.A (Hons.) in Economics from Shriram College of Commerce, Delhi University (1984-87), LL.B 
from Maharishi Dayanand University, Rohtak and Post-Graduation in Business Administration (Public 
Policy) from University of Ljubljana, Slovenia. Further, he has attended the prestigious courses of 
Leadership & Change Management and Leadership Development program from reputed IIM’s based 
in Ahmedabad and Indore. 
For his contribution towards the society, he has been awarded the prestigious “Skoch Award-2010 - 
The world is open award” for providing computer-aided education to Scheduled Caste dominated 
schools in Bankura and Burdwan and “The Stockholm Challenge Award”, which is a worldwide 
competition of pioneering IT projects. Out of the 742 IT projects from 90 countries, the project for 
provision of Computer Aided Design (CAD) skills to handloom weavers/designers at Shantipur, Nadia 
was among the 15 short-listed for the finals. 
As a researcher, he has a number of publications to his name, out of which following have been the 
most impactful: 
- A study on ICT usage in Indian Schools (2006) - The answer to what is happening in Computer 
Education from 1000 Indian Schools. 
- Efficiency & Management practices of select public examining bodies in India- Benchmarking 
Boards and their performance. 
In addition, Shri Bharadwaj delivers speeches in conferences on Infrastructure, IT & Education and 
also takes time in writing articles on governance issues. 

 
Sh. Nitishwar Kumar, IAS 

Nominee of JKSPDCL 
DIN: 05326456 

Shri Nitishwar Kumar is an Indian Administrative Services Officer of 1996 batch. He is presently 
Principal Secretary to Hon’ble Lieutenant Governor Govt. of Jammu & Kashmir (UT). Prior to this, he 
was serving as Joint Secretary/Member Secretary, National Council for Teacher Education (NCTE), 
Department of School Education & Literacy, Ministry of Education. Shri Kumar is holding the position 
of Nominee Director of JKSPDC Limited on the Board of the Company w.e.f. 21.12.2021. 
His career in different fields of administration spans over 25 years. Having worked in different 
capacities and departments at State and Central government level he possesses a wide range of 
experience and expertise. He has worked in Health, Education, Revenue, Energy, Water Resources, 
Planning & Monitoring. In many of his assignments he has been responsible for Planning and 
Programme implementation which is his area of expertise. 
 
Shri Kumar is a post graduate in Economics and has also done Masters in Public Management and 
Governance from London School of Economics & Political Science. He is also an avid reader and 
keen observer of nature and is widely known for his literary pursuits, poetry and singing. 
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Sh. Yamuna Kumar Chaubey 
Nominee of NHPC Limited 

DIN: 08492346 
Shri Yamuna Kumar Chaubey is a graduate in Civil Engineering from IIT, Kharagpur and holds the 
position of Nominee Director of NHPC Limited on the Board of the Company since its incorporation 
i.e. 01.06.2021. 
Presently, Shri Chaubey is holding the post of Director (Technical) in NHPC Limited and the current 
charge of the post of Chairman and Managing Director of NHPC Limited with additional charge of 
Director (Personnel). Shri Chaubey has experience of more than 35 years and has served in various 
departments i.e. Contracts, Design & Engineering and Construction Projects of NHPC in various 
capacities. He possesses experience in all aspects of development of a hydro-project from concept to 
commissioning and has contributed in development of NHPC Limited. Prior to joining NHPC Board, 
he held the position of Executive Director (Contracts) and was responsible for finalization & award of 
major contracts i.e. civil, hydro-mechanical, electro-mechanical, solar etc. including settlement of 
contractual issues relating to pre & post award stages of work. 
His career spans for more than 25 years in Design & Engineering Division of NHPC, working, in 
various capacities, in planning & layout engineering for PFR/FR/DPR and construction stage design 
of hydro-electric/river valley projects. He has to his credit planning and designing of major hydro-
projects of NHPC, namely 540 MW Chamera-I Project, Himachal Pradesh, 60 MW Kurichhu Project, 
Bhutan, 231 MW Chamera-III Project, Himachal Pradesh, 2000 MW Subansiri Lower project, 
Arunachal Pradesh, 2880 MW Dibang Multi-Purpose Project, Arunachal Pradesh. 
He has also worked in construction of two prestigious projects of NHPC i.e. 540 MW Chamera-I 
Project, Himachal Pradesh - executed in collaboration with SNC/ACRES of Canada and 480 MW Uri 
HE Project, J&K - executed on turn-key basis by Uri Civil a Swedish Consortium. 
He also contributed as an expert member of Working Group, led by Deputy Chairman, Planning 
Commission for the 3rd China-India Strategic Economic Dialogue in 2014 at Beijing, China. On 
request of Polavaram Project Authority, in 2017, he led NHPC expert team to Polavaram Multi-
Purpose project for alternate arrangement of coffer dam. 
He went to Stockholm, Sweden in 1993 under Transfer of Technology Programme. He also 
participated in ICOLD-2004, Seoul, South Korea and ICOLD-2016, Johannesburg, South Africa. 
Presently, Shri Chaubey is also on the Board of Bundelkhand Saur Urja Limited as Nominee Director 
w.e.f. 25th June, 2019 and Chairman since 02nd January, 2021. Also, he is a Nominee Director on 
the Board of Chenab Valley Power Projects Private Limited w.e.f. 01st October, 2020. 
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Sh. Rajendra Prasad Goyal 
Nominee of NHPC Limited 

DIN: 08645380 
Shri Rajendra Prasad Goyal is an Associate Member of the Institute of Cost Accountants of India and 
also holds a Master's Degree in Commerce from the University of Rajasthan, Jaipur. He has been 
holding the position of Nominee Director of NHPC Limited on the Board of the Company since its 
incorporation on 01.06.2021. 
Presently, Sh. Goyal is serving as Director (Finance) in NHPC Limited w.e.f. 01.10.2020. 
Sh. Goyal has vast experience of more than 32 years in NHPC Ltd. and worked in various capacities 
at many Projects, Power Stations, Regional Office and Corporate Office of NHPC. 
Sh. Goyal has immense understanding in the core areas of Finance with in-depth understanding and 
knowledge of Financial, Contractual and Regulatory issues involved in construction as well operations 
of Hydro Projects. His leadership qualities, ability to work hard with conceptual clarity and 
professionalism are outstanding. 
Sh. Goyal is also serving as Nominee Director on the Board of Loktak Downstream Hydroelectric 
Corporation Limited (LDHCL), Chenab Valley Power Projects (P) Ltd. (CVPPPL), NHDC Limited 
(subsidiary Companies of NHPC Limited). 

 
Sh. Biswajit Basu 

Nominee of NHPC Limited 
DIN: 09003080 

Shri Biswajit Basu graduated from Tripura Engineering College (Now NIT, Agartala) in Electrical 
Engineering in year 1986 and has diverse experience of more than 33 years in the field of Hydro 
Power. He has been holding the position of Nominee Director of NHPC Limited on the Board of the 
Company since its incorporation i.e. 01.06.2021. 
Presently, Shri Basu is serving as Director (Projects) in NHPC Limited w.e.f. 01.01.2021. Shri Biswajit 
Basu is associated with NHPC Limited since October, 1987 and steadily rose to current position with 
utmost sense of responsibility, ethics and dedication. In his present assignment as Director (Projects), 
Shri Basu is in-charge of all under construction projects of NHPC, which includes Hydro as well as 
Renewable Energy Projects. Major functions of various divisions in Corporate Office i.e., Project 
Monitoring & Support Group (PMSG), IT&C, Construction Equipment Planning & Monitoring (CEPM), 
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Arbitration, Renewable Energy, CSR-SD, Corporate Communications and Estate Management 
Services are also under his ambit. 
Prior to joining NHPC Board, Shri Basu has served NHPC in various capacities and contributed to 
most of the projects of NHPC during Construction and O&M Stages. During his stint, he worked as 
Head of Project of various projects including Chutak Power Station, Loktak Power Station, Dibang 
Multipurpose Project and Dhauliganga Power Station. During the commissioning of TLDP – III Power 
Station he was the In-charge of Commissioning Team. He has also worked as CEO of Loktak 
Downstream Hydroelectric Corporation Limited (LDHCL). He has attended various international 
Training programs across the countries like Sweden and France under Transfer of Technology 
Program. 
Shri Basu is an avid sports person and had captained NHPC’s Football Team during his tenure at 
Loktak Power Station (1988-1994) in All India Power Sector Football tournaments. 
Presently Shri Basu is also serving as Nominee Director-Chairman on the Board of Lanco Teesta 
Hydro Power Limited (LTHPL), Jalpower Corporation Limited (JPCL) and NHPC Renewable Energy 
Limited (NREL) (wholly owned subsidiaries of NHPC). Also he is a Nominee Director on the Board of 
Bundelkhand Saur Urja Limited (Joint Venture of NHPC and UPNEDA) and Ratle Hydroelectric 
Power Corporation Limited (Joint Venture of NHPC and JKSPDC). 

 

Dr. (Mrs.) Kamla Fartyal 
Nominee of NHPC Limited 

DIN: 08578908 
Dr. Kamla Fartyal holds the degree of Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery (MBBS) from 
University of Medical Sciences, New Delhi. She has been holding the position of Nominee Director of 
NHPC Limited on the Board of the Company w.e.f. 23.06.2021. 
Presently, Dr. Fartyal is serving as Chief General Manager (Medical Services) in NHPC Limited. 
Dr. Fartyal has vast experience of more than of 35 years as a General Physician and has been with 
NHPC Ltd. for the last 31 years. She has worked in various capacities in NHPC and played a pivotal 
role in promoting health care and health education in NHPC. She is also holding the position of 
Chairperson of WIPS (Women in Public Sector) in NHPC, Committee Regarding Prevention, 
Protection & Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women Employee at work place in NHPC, Liaison 
Officer in the Committee for SC/PWD/OBC at NHPC Ltd, Executive Member & Vice President of 
AEOHD (Association of Environmental & Occupational Health Disease), Delhi, Member in “SCOPE 
Health Committee”. She has been conferred with various prestigious awards for her exemplary work. 
Dr. Fartyal is also serving as Nominee Director on the Board of Lanco Teesta Hydro Power Limited (a 
wholly owned Subsidiary of NHPC Limited). 
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रतल ेहाइड्र ोइलके्ट्ररक पॉवर कॉरपोरेशन लललिटेड् 
( एनएचपीसी लललिटेड् और जेकेएसपीड्ीसी लललिटेड् का एक संयुक्त उद्यि) 

RATLE HYDROELECTRIC POWER CORPORATION LIMITED 
(A Joint Venture of NHPC Limited and JKSPDC Limited) 

Regd. Off.: Room No. 8, Block No. 2, NHPC Regional Office, JDA Commercial Complex,  
Plot No. 1, Narwal, Jammu-180006 (UT of J&K)  

CIN: U40105JK2021GOI012380, e-mail id: ceo.ratle@nhpc.nic.in 
 

NOTICE 

 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 1
st

 Annual General Meeting of the members of Ratle 
Hydroelectric Power Corporation Limited  will be held on Wednesday, the 28

th day of 
September, 2022 at 03:00 P.M. through Video Conference (“VC”)/ Other Audio Visual Means 
(“OAVM”) to transact the following businesses. The venue of the meeting shall be deemed to 
be NHPC Office Complex, Sector-33, Faridabad- 121003 (Haryana). 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the company for the 
financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 together with the Board’s report, the report of 
auditor’s thereon and comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India. 
 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Rajendra Prasad Goyal (DIN: 08645380) who retires 
by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment for the term at the pleasure 
of the NHPC Limited. 
 

3. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Biswajit Basu (DIN: 09003080), who retires by 
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment for the term at the pleasure of 
the NHPC Limited. 

 
4. To authorize Board of Directors of the company to fix the remuneration of the Statutory 

Auditors for the financial year 2022-23 and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, as 
Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 142 read with relevant provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), 
the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to fix the remuneration of Statutory 
Auditor for the financial year 2022-23; 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby 
authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient 
to give effect to this resolution.” 
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SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 
5. TO INCREASE BORROWING LIMIT OF THE COMPANY UP TO RS.3,698 CRORE: 

 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 
resolutions as Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to section 180(1) (c) and other applicable provisions, if any of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, consent of the members of the 
company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter 
to refer as the “Board” which terms shall  deemed to be include any committee duly 
constituted by the Board  or any committee, which the Board may hereafter constitute), to 
raise or borrow from time to time such sum or sums as may be deemed necessary, on 
such terms and conditions and with or without security as the Board may deem fir for the 
purposes of business of the company notwithstanding that the money already borrowed 
and the monies to be borrowed (apart from temporary loans obtained from company’s 
bankers in the ordinary course of business) will exceed the paid-up capital of the company 
and free reserve not set apart for any specific purpose provided that the total amount up to 
which monies may be borrowed by the Board of Directors shall not at any time exceed 
Rs.3,698 Crores (Rupees Three Thousand Six Hundred Ninety Eight Crore only).  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorized to do 
such acts, deeds, things and execute all such documents, undertakings as may be 
necessary for giving effect to the above resolution.”  
 

6. TO CREATE MORTGAGE AND/ OR CHARGE ON ALL OR ANY OF THE MOVABLE OR 

IMMOVABLE PROPERTIES  OF THE COMPANY: 
 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 
resolutions as Special Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 
2013 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the companies Act, 2013 consent of the 
Shareholders be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to 
create such charges, mortgages and hypothecations on all or any one or more of the 
movable/ immovable properties and/ or whole of substantially the whole of the undertaking 
(s) of the Company, as the case may be, both present and future, on such other terms and 
conditions and at such time or times and in such form or manner as the Board may deem 
fir, to or in favour of National/ International Financial Institutions/ Banks/ multilateral 
institutions/ trust etc. hereinafter referred as ”the Lenders” for securing the borrowings 
availed/ to be availed by way of rupee/ foreign currency loans, other external commercial 
borrowings, issue of debentures/ Bonds etc. on such terms and conditions as may be 
mutually agreed with the lenders of the Company towards security for borrowing of funds 
for the purpose of business of the Company. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors be and are hereby authorized and it shall 
always be deemed to have been so authorized to finalize and execute with the Lenders the 
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requisite agreement, documents deeds and writings for borrowing and/ or for creating 
the aforesaid mortgages(s) and/or charge(s) and to do all such other acts, deeds and 
things as may be necessary to give effect to the above resolution ." 

By order of the Board of Directors 
For Ratle Hydroelectric Power Corporation Limited 

Date: 14 ·· O Cf -2.o2.2.... 
Place: Faridabad 

Notes: 
(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

In view of the continuing restrictions due to Covid-19, the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs ("MCA") has, vide its circular dated May 5, 2022 read together with circulars 
dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 5, 2020, January 13, 2021, December 08, 
2021 and December 14, 2021 (collectively referred to as "MCA Circulars"), 
permitted conven ing the AGM through VC/OAVM, without physical presence of the 
members at a common venue. Hence, in compliance with the Circulars, the AGM of 
the Company is being held through VC/OAVM. 

The instructions for joining the Annual General Meeting are as under: 
a. The meeting will be held through Microsoft Teams/Zoom Application. 
b. Members can join the meeting either through Microsoft Teams/Zoom app or 

through desktop by using the link sent along with the Notice of AGM on the 
registered email id. 

c. In case of android/ iphone connection, Participants will be required to download 
and Install the appropriate application as given in the e-mail sent to them. 
Application may be downloaded from Google Play Store/ App Store. 

d. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet audio 
settings as and when asked while setting up the meeting on Mobile App. 

e. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or 
through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience AudioN ideo 
loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended 
to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid 
glitches. 

f . The facility for joining the meeting will be kept open fifteen minutes before 
scheduled time for AGM and will be closed at conclusion of the meeting . 

g. For any assistance, members may write to Company Secretary at 
abhishekdagur@nhpc. nic. in or contact at +91 -8955544403. 

A member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to 
attend and vote on his/ her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the 
Company. Since the AGM is being held in accord ance with the Ci rculars through 
VC/ OAVM, the facility for appointment of proxies by the members will not be 
available. 

Notice ofO I'' AGI'vi-RI IPCL 
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(iv) Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be reckoned for the purpose 

of quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act). 
 

(v) Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in 
this Notice.  
 

(vi) In terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Shri Rajendra Prasad Goyal 
and Shri Biswajit Basu, Directors are liable to retire by rotation at the meeting. 
Being eligible, Shri Rajendra Prasad Goyal and Shri Biswajit Basu offers 
themselves for re-appointment. The Board of Directors commends their 
re-appointment.  

 
(vii) Brief details of directors seeking reappointment at the Annual General Meeting  are 

as under: 

Name Shri Rajendra Prasad 
Goyal 

Shri Biswajit Basu 

Date of Birth & Age August 08, 1965 (57 years) December 30, 1963 (58 
years) 

Qualification Associate Member of the 
institute of Cost 

Accountants of India, 
Master’s Degree in 
Commerce from the 

University of Rajasthan 

Electrical Engineering 
from Tripura Engineering 

College (Now IIT, 
Agartala) 

Terms & Conditions of 
appointment or 
re-appointment along 
with the details of 
remuneration 

As decided by Appointing 
Authority i.e. NHPC Limited 

As decided by Appointing 
Authority i.e. NHPC 
Limited 

Date of first 
appointment on Board  

01/06/2021 01/06/2021 

Relationship with 
other Directors, 
Manager & KMP 

NIL NIL 

No. of Board Meetings 
attended and held 
during the year 
2021-22 

7/7 7/7 

Directorship, 
Membership/Chairma
nship in Committees 
held in other 
Companies 

1. NHPC Limited (Director-
Finance and Member of 
Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee, Committee of 
Directors on CSR & 
Sustainability and Risk 
Management Committee) 

2. Chenab Valley Power 
Projects (P) Ltd. (Director) 

3. Loktak Downstream 
Hydroelectric Power 
Corporation Ltd. (Director 
and Chairman of Audit 
Committee) 

4. NHDC Limited (Director, 

1. NHPC Limited 
(Director-Projects and 
Member of Committee 
of Directors on CSR & 
Sustainability) 

2. Lanco Teesta Hydro 
Power Limited. 
(Director- Chairman) 

3. Bundelkhand Saur Urja 
Limited (Director) 

4. Jalpower Corporation 
Limited (Director-
Chairman) 

5. NHPC Renewable 
Energy Limited 
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Chairman of Audit 
Committee and Member of 
Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee) 

(Director-Chairman) 

Number of shares 
held in the Company 

01 (One) Equity Share as 
Nominee of NHPC Limited 

NIL 

 
(viii) In compliance with the Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 

2021-22 is to be sent through electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail 
addresses are available with the Company.  
 

(ix) Corporate Members are requested to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPEG format) of 
the Board Resolution authorizing its representative to attend and to vote at the 
AGM, pursuant to Section 113 of the Act. The said resolution/authorization shall be 
sent to the Company Secretary by e-mail through registered e-mail address to 
abhishekdagur@nhpc.nic.in. 

 
(x) The voting will be done by show of hands at the first instance unless chairman 

decides otherwise or any member demand for poll. In case the poll is decided by 
the chairman or demanded, the poll will be conducted immediately and all members 
are requested to send their assent or dissent on each business at 
abhishekdagur@nhpc.nic.in through the email ids on which they have received the 
notice of AGM. 
 

(xi) The Register of Directors & Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and their 
shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Register of Contracts and arrangements in which Directors are interested 
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available 
electronically for inspection by the members during the AGM. All documents 
referred to in the Notice will also be available for electronic inspection without any 
fee by the members from the date of circulation of the Notice up to the date of AGM. 
Members seeking to inspect documents can send an e-mail to Company Secretary 
at abhishekdagur@nhpc.nic.in mentioning their name, folio number and Permanent 
Account Number (PAN).  

 
(xii) Pursuant to Section 139 (5) of Companies Act, 2013 the statutory auditors of a 

Government Company are appointed or re-appointed by the Comptroller and 
Auditor General of India (C&AG). Further, their remuneration has to be fixed by the 
Company in a General Meeting or in such manner as the Company in General 
Meeting may determine in terms of Section 142(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. The 
members may authorise the Board to fix an appropriate remuneration of Joint 
Statutory Auditors to be appointed by C&AG for financial year 2022-23, as may be 
deemed fit by the Board. 

 
(xiii) None of the Directors of the Company is in any way related to each other except in 

their professional / employment capacity.  
 

Explanatory Statement Pursuant to section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013: 
 
ITEM NO. 5:   

As per the requirements of Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, rules made there 
under and any other statutory and procedural formalities to be complied with in this regard, the 
Board of Directors of the Company, except with the consent of Shareholders of the Company 
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Notice of 01
st
 AGM-RHPCL 

 

by passing a Special Resolution, shall not borrow monies in excess of aggregate of its 
paid-up share capital and free reserves and securities premium at any time. 
 
As per CEA, the financing of hydroelectric project needs to be in debt equity ratio of 70:30. 
The estimated cost of the Ratle HE Project (540MW), being developed by your Company has 
been worked out as Rs.5281.94 crore (Nov. 2018 PL). Accordingly, the debt requirement for 
the project works out to Rs.3697.36 crore. The authorised share capital of the Company is Rs. 
1600 crore and paid up capital, free reserve and security premium account as on 31.03.2022 
was Rs. 186.27 Crore. The outstanding loan as on 31.03.2022 was Nil.  
 
Considering the debt requirements of the company for execution of Ratle HE Project, approval 
of shareholders of the Company is sought by way of special resolution for authorizing the 
Board of Directors to borrow money from time to time, exceeding the paid-up share capital of 
the Company, its free reserves and securities premium provided that the total amount so 
borrowed (apart from temporary loans obtained from company’s bankers in the ordinary 
course of business) shall not at any time exceed Rs.3698 Crores (Rupees Three Thousand 
Six Hundred Ninety Eight Crore only). 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company has approved the above proposal and recommends 
the passing of the proposed Special Resolution by Members of the Company as contained in 
the Notice. 
 
The Directors or Key Managerial Persons or their relatives do not have any concern or 
interest, financial or otherwise, in passing of the said Resolution except to the extent of their 
shareholding in the Company. 
 
ITEM NO. 6:   
As per the requirements of Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, rules made there 
under and any other statutory and procedural formalities to be complied with in this regard, the 
Board of Directors of the Company, except with the consent of Shareholders of the Company 
by passing a Special Resolution, shall not sell lease or otherwise dispose-off any of the 
immovable and/or movable properties of the Company, both present and future, or otherwise 
for the value of more than twenty percent of Net worth as per latest audited Balance Sheet of 
the preceding financial year. 
 
Considering the future debt requirements of the Company, funds are to be raised by creation 
of security on the immovable/movable properties of the Company. 
 
Therefore, it is proposed to authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to 
mortgage/create charge on immovable and/or movable properties of the Company, or to sell, 
lease or otherwise dispose-off the whole or substantially the whole of the undertaking or the 
undertakings of the company, both present and future for securing the borrowing on bonds or 
on term loans or in any other manner in the Indian Currency and in any Foreign Currency for 
the purpose of the business of the Company as per the requirements of Section 180(1)(a) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder and any other statutory and procedural 
formalities to be complied with in this regard. 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company has approved the above proposal and recommends 
the passing of the proposed Special Resolution by Members of the Company as contained in 
the Notice. 
 
None of the Directors or key managerial personnel of your Company or any of their relatives is 
in any way, concerned or interested in the proposed resolution. 

11



 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

Dear Members, 

 

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting their 1st Annual Report of your Company, 

together with the audited financial statements, Auditor’s Report, Report of Secretarial 

Auditor and review of financial statements by the Comptroller and Auditor General of 

India for the financial year ended on 31st March 2022. 

 

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS 

 The financial results of your Company for the year ended 31st March 2022 

are summarized in Table 1. 

 TABLE 1: FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS            (Rs. in Lakhs) 

PARTICULARS Year ended on 

31.03.2022 

Revenue from Operations - 
Other Income 209.39 
TOTAL INCOME (A) 209.39 

TOTAL EXPENDITURE (B) 262.81 

Profit Before Depreciation, Interest and Tax (A-B) (53.42) 
Depreciation - 
Profit After Depreciation but Before Interest and Tax (53.42) 

Interest & Finance Charges - 
Profit After Depreciation and Interest but Before Tax (53.42) 

Tax Expenses (10.58) 
Profit After Depreciation, Interest and Tax (42.84) 
Profit available for appropriations (42.84) 

APPROPRIATIONS - 

Tax on Dividend written back - 
Interim Dividend - 
Proposed Final Dividend - 
Transfer to general reserve - 
Balance Profit carried to Reserves and Surplus - 
Surplus of Statement of Profit and Loss of earlier years (42.84) 
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During the year 2021-22, Company has not earned any revenue from 

operations. The Company had parked the funds received from promoters 

towards equity contribution in fixed deposits with SBI and has earned an interest 

of Rs.209.39 Lakh. The Company had reported loss of Rs.42.84 lakh for the 

financial year ended on 31.03.2022, which has been transferred to Reserves and 

Surplus account. 

 

2. DIVIDEND 

The Board of Directors of your Company has not recommended any 

dividend for the financial year 2021-22. 

 

3. CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND NET WORTH 

The Authorised and Paid up Share Capital of the Company as on 31st 

March, 2022 were Rs. 1,600 crore and 185.14 crore respectively. The Net worth 

of the Company as on 31st March, 2022 stood at Rs.186.27 crore. 

 

4. STATUS OF RATLE HYDROELECTRIC PROJECT (850MW) 

The execution of Ratle HE Project (850 MW) was entrusted to the 

company which was incorporated as Ratle Hydroelectric Power Corporation 

Limited (RHPCL) on 01.06.2021. The Tendering for EPC Turnkey execution of 

main works of Ratle HEP was published on CPPP portal on 22.07.2021 by NHPC 

Limited on behalf of RHPC Limited.  

 

Various clearances like Environmental Clearance, Forest Clearance, Indus 

Water Treaty (IWT) Clearance, Central Electricity Authority (CEA0 Appraisal, 

Defence Clearance which were accorded in favour of previous developer have 

been transferred in the name of RHPCL. 

 

The Letter of Award for Turnkey execution of 850 MW Ratle HEP was 

issued on 18.01.2022 in favour of Megha Engineering & Infrastructures Limited 

(MEIL) at a Contract price of Rs. 3485.14 Crores including all Taxes and duties 

with completion period of 52 months from date of Award. Contractor reached site 

on 29.01.2022 and site was handed over to MEIL on 12.02.2022.  
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Physical Progress at Site: The Contractor has started the process for 

mobilisation activities and preliminary construction activities at site including 

excavation of Diversion Tunnel, repair/Restoration of Access Roads, Permanent 

Bridge completion etc. Total Road length of 2 KM has been improved/ repaired till 

31.03.2022. Heading excavation in Diversion Tunnels (DT) have been initiated 

and first blast taken in DT 1 & DT2 on 23.03.2022 & 15.03.2022 respectively. A 

total length of approx. 45 m (16m in DT1 & 29m in DT2) has been excavated till 

31.03.2022. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Project Layout 

 

 

Diversion Tunnel-1 

 

5. FINANCING OF THE PROJECTS: 

In line with Investment sanction for construction of the Ratle H.E. project 

received from the Government of India, the financing of the project shall be 
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considered in 70:30 Debt Equity Ratio. The Company is a Joint–venture 

Company of NHPC Limited and Jammu & Kashmir State Power Development 

Corporation Limited (JKSPDCL). The equity portion of the project cost shall be 

contributed by the Promoters. As on 31.03.2022, the Company has not borrowed 

debt in any form. However, the Company will raise debt for project financing as 

and when required.  

 

6. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND COMMUNICATION 

Your Company uses information technology to communicate with its 

Members, Auditors, Directors etc. Company had launched its website i.e. 

www.rhpcindia.com, which hosts various information for the benefit of its 

stakeholders. As per the Government of India directives & policy of the company 

in this regard, the procurement process through e-tendering system is being 

implemented in the Company on GeM portal and CPP portal. Further, all 

communication with Directors related to Meetings of Board of Directors is being 

done electronically and company has implemented ‘BOARDPAC’ system for 

paperless meetings. 

 

7. TRAINING AND HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT 

The fast changing economic scenario and technological innovations are 

creating an increasingly competitive market environment. Your Company 

consistently evaluates the training needs of employees deputed by NHPC and 

JKSPDCL, to keep them updated with latest changes, thereby improving their 

productivity and work efficiency. Based on the evaluation, the employees are 

provided training through T&HRD Division of NHPC Limited. 

 

8. INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

During the year, industrial relations remain cordial and harmonious. 

 

9. RESETTLEMENT AND REHABILITATION 

Govt. of UT of J&K vide order No. 91-PDD of 2013 dated 21.03.2013 (in 

terms of their Cabinet decision No. 44/7/2013 dated 15.03.2013), had accorded 

the sanction to the Rehabilitation & Resettlement (R&R) plan of 850MW Ratle HE 

Project. Subsequently, in line with the provisions contained in the MOU signed 
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between NHPC Limited, JKSPDC & Govt. of UT of J&K, the estimate of R&R 

plan previously sanctioned has been revised as per the rates provided in case of 

R&R plan of Kishanganga HEP of NHPC and submitted to JKSPDC/GoJK on 

07.09.2021 for examination/ accord of approval. The submitted R&R plan is 

under examination/ vetting in various departments of Govt. of UT of J&K. The 

benefits of the plan shall be extended to the Project Affected Families (PAFs) of 

Ratle HE Project.  

 

10. VIGILANCE ACTIVITIES 

As your Company is a subsidiary of NHPC Limited, therefore, the vigilance 

function has been assigned to Chief Vigilance Officer, NHPC Limited. A Project 

Vigilance Officer (PVO) has also been appointed by Vigilance Division, NHPC. 

Further, provisions of integrity pact in line with NHPC have been incorporated in 

the EPC bid document for turnkey execution of Ratle Hydroelectric Project. 

Circulars and guidelines issued by NHPC are invariably followed by the Company 

as part of preventive vigilance. As on 31.03.2022, the Board of your company 

has not constituted Audit Committee due to non-availability of Independent 

Directors.  

 

11. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with 

reference to financial statements. During the year, such controls were tested and 

no reportable material weaknesses in the design and operation were observed. 

 

12. RISK MANAGEMENT 

Your Company is yet to formulate its own Risk Management Policy. 

However, the Company has adopted the policies (including HR policies) of NHPC 

Limited, therefore, the Company adheres to the Risk Management Policy of 

NHPC Limited.  The Broad category of risks associated with the project being 

undertaken by the Company is as under: 

(a) Strategic Risk: 

Risk of losses resulting from business factors. These risks adversely affect 

 the achievement of strategic objectives which may impair overall 

 enterprise value. 
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(b) Financial Risk: 

Risk directly impacting the balance sheet and access to capital market. 

(c) Operational Risk: 

Risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed processes, people and 

 information systems. 

(d)  Compliance risk: 

 Risk arising out of non-compliance with/ non-fulfillment of legal, regulatory 

 and statutory requirements. 

 

13. PROCUREMENT FROM  MICRO & SMALL ENTERPRISES 

Government of India has notified Public Procurement Policy for Micro and 

Small Enterprises (MSEs) Order, 2012 to support marketing of products 

produced and services rendered by MSEs. The benefits to MSEs like exemption 

from tender fees and earnest money deposit, purchase preference, interest on 

delayed payments and exemption from prior experience- prior turnover criteria 

subject to meeting of quality and technical specifications are extended to 

encourage these enterprises. 

 

During the financial year 2021-22, your Company has procured goods and 

services from MSEs, which constituted 71.21% of the total annual procurement 

value. 

 

14. OFFICIAL LANGUAGE IMPLEMENTATION 

Efforts were made to improve the use of official language in accordance 

with the policy of the Government of India. Your company is committed for the 

implementation of Official Language ‘Hindi’ in day-to-day functioning in line with 

the provisions of the Official Languages Act, 1963 and Rules notified thereunder. 

During the year 2021-22, quarterly meetings, monthly departmental meetings, 

Hindi Pakhwara, etc. were organized to encourage the use of Official Language. 

 

15. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

During the year 2021-22, seven meetings of Board of Directors were held. 

A separate section on Corporate Governance is given at Annexure-A. In 

compliance with the guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public 
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Sector Enterprises issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), a 

Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary regarding compliance of 

conditions of Corporate Governance is placed at Annexure-B. 

 

16. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

As stipulated under DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs, 

a separate report on management discussion and analysis along with financial 

discussion and analysis is annexed at Annexure-C to this report. 

 

17. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

Taking note of the initial set up, there is no significant information relating 

to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption as required to be disclosed 

under section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. During the financial year 2021-22, there was 

no foreign exchange earnings and outgo of the Company. Details are annexed at 

Annexure-D and form part of the Directors’ Report. 

 

18. CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

During the financial year 2021-22, the Company has not entered into any 

material transaction as contract or arrangement with any of its related parties 

except for Consultancy assignment that included technical support services for 

tendering and for design & engineering. The agreement for aforesaid consultancy 

assignment was entered into on 07.03.2022 subsequent to the approval of 

Board. This consultancy assignment agreement was awarded to NHPC on arm’s 

length basis. The Company’s all related party contracts/ arrangements are 

generally with NHPC Limited (a Government Company) for taking consultancy 

services, property on lease and manpower services. These contracts/ 

arrangements were intended to further Company’s interests. All the contracts/ 

arrangements with related parties were on arm’s length basis. Accordingly, the 

disclosure in respect of particulars of contracts/ arrangements with related parties 

as required under section 134 (3) (h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in form AOC-2 

is not applicable. 
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19. REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) & 

 SUSTAINABILITY DEVELOPMENT (SD) 

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not 

required to undertake Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities as 

Company is not covered under following class of companies who are required to 

constitute CSR Committee and to spend a specified amount of profits on CSR 

activities: 

a. company having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more during the 

immediately preceding financial year, or  

b. company having turnover of rupees one thousand crore or more during the 

immediately preceding financial year or  

c. company having a net profit of rupees five crore or more during the 

immediately preceding financial year 

 

However, being a responsible corporate citizen of the Country, during the 

financial year 2021-22 your company with the approval of Board, had spent as 

amount of Rs. 9.04 lakh on CSR activities in the field of Health care & Sanitation, 

Education & Skill Development, Sports and Rural Development. 

 

20. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

 Your company believes that diversity at workplace creates an environment 

conducive to engagement, alignment, innovation and high performance. Every 

employee in the company is treated with dignity, respect and afforded equal 

treatment. A policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual 

Harassment of Women at Workplace, in line with the provisions of the Sexual 

Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 

2013 is in place. ‘Internal Complaints Committees’ have been constituted for the 

redressal of complaints against sexual harassment of women at workplace.  

 

Disclosure in respect of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 for the financial year 2021-22 

is as under:  

1 Number of complaints pending at the beginning of the financial year Nil 

2 Number of complaints filed during the financial year Nil 
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3 Number of complaints disposed off during the financial Year Nil 

4 Number of complaints pending at the end of the financial year  Nil 

 

21. ANNUAL RETURN 

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Act read with Rule 

12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the 

Annual Return of the Company has been placed on the website of the Company 

and can be accessed at www.rhpcindia.com. 

 

22. RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT 

Right to Information has been implemented in the Company in accordance 

with Right to Information Act, 2005. During the year 2021-22, one (1) application 

was received which was replied and thus 100% applications received were 

replied/ disposed of.  

 

23. AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 

(a) STATUTORY AUDITOR AND REVIEW BY COMPTROLLER & 

AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA (C&AG) 

In exercise of powers conferred by Section 139 of the Companies Act, 

2013, the Comptroller and Auditor General of India had appointed M/s Gupta 

Palwal & Associates, Chartered Accountants as the Statutory Auditor of the 

Company for the year 2021-22. The reports of the Statutory Auditor along with 

financial results of the Company are enclosed as Annexure-E. The Comptroller 

and Auditor General of India (CAG) have given a nil comment on financial 

statements of the Company for the year ended 31.03.2022. The communication 

received from C&AG on the Financial Statements of your company is enclosed 

as Annexure-F. 

 

The notes on financial statements referred to in the Auditor’s Report are 

self-explanatory and do not require any further comments. The Auditor’s Report 

do not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. 
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(b) INTERNAL AUDITOR 
 

As per section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s GASM DANSR and 

Co., Faridabad to conduct the internal audit of the Company. The firm has not 

reported any significant internal control weakness in the processes of the 

company. 

(c) SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 

The Board of Directors had appointed M/s A.K. Rastogi & Associates, 

Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conduct the 

secretarial audit for the year 2021-22. The secretarial audit report is given at 

Annexure-G to this report. The Secretarial Auditor, in their Report, has made 

certain qualifications / observations. The qualifications / observations and reply 

thereto are as under: 

S. 
No. 

Qualification / Observations Management Reply 

1. Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide 
Notification No GSR 839(E) dated 
5th July 2017 has exempted a 
Joint Venture Company from the 
requirement of having 
independent Directors as such 
the Company is not required to 
have Independent Directors on 
its Board. However, in the 
absence of independent 
Directors, the composition of the 
Board of Directors is not in 
Compliance with DPE Guidelines 
on Corporate Governance for 
CPSEs. 

As per Article II (58) of the Articles 
of Association of the Company 
read with MCA notification dated 
5th June, 2015, the power to 
appoint Independent Director on 
the Board of the Company vests in 
the Administrative Ministry i.e. 
Ministry of Power. The matter 
regarding appointment of 
Independent Directors has been 
taken up with the Administrative 
Ministry i.e. Ministry of Power, 
Govt. of India. Reply from Ministry 
of Power in this regard is still 
awaited. 

2. The Company has not 
constituted Audit Committee as 
required under DPE Guidelines 
on Corporate Governance for 
CPSEs, as the Company does 
not have any Independent 
Director on its Board. 

As per DPE guidelines, the Audit 
Committee and Remuneration 
Committee shall comprise of 
Independent Directors. The power 
to appoint Independent Directors 
on the Board of the Company 
vests with the Administrative 
Ministry i.e. Ministry of Power, 
Govt. of India.  
 
Accordingly, the Board of Directors 
of the Company in its 03rd meeting 
held on 05.10.2021 had decided to 
constitute Audit Committee and 

3. The Company has not 
constituted the Remuneration 
Committee as required under 
DPE Guidelines on Corporate 
Governance for CPSEs, as the 
Company does not have any 
Independent Director on its 
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Board. Remuneration Committee after 
appointment of Independent 
Directors on Board of the 
Company by the administrative 
Ministry i.e. Ministry of Power, 
Govt. of India. 
 
Compliance shall be made after 
appointment of requisite number of 
Independent Directors on the 
Board of the Company.  

 

24. PARTICULARS OF LOAN & GUARANTEE GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE 

AND SECURITIES PROVIDED 

 Your Company has not given any loans, provided any guarantee or 

security to any other entity. The same was reflected in Note no. 3.1, 3.2, 10 & 11 

of the financial statements for FY 2021-22. Further, Section 186 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (except sub section (1) regarding loans made, guarantees 

given or securities provided) is not applicable to the Company as it is engaged in 

the business of providing infrastructure facilities. 

 

25. COVID-19 : 

 The Covid-19 pandemic consequences were not restricted to mere health 

crisis but also had an unprecedented impact on Indian and global business 

environment. Your company has followed all preventive measures as per the 

COVID guidelines issued from time to time by Central Government and State 

Government/ Local bodies. Since, the Company was incorporated on 

01.06.2021, there is no material Impact of COVID-19 on the construction as well 

as financial performance of the Company. 

   

26. DISCLOSURES: 

(i) As per Ministry of Corporate Affairs Notification No GSR 839(E) dated 5th 

July 2017, the Company being a Joint Venture company was exempted 

from the requirement of having Independent Directors on its Board. 

(ii) As per Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 

Directors) Rules, 2014, the Company being a joint venture Company is not 

required to constitute an 'Audit Committee' and a 'Nomination and 
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Remuneration Committee' of the Board as per provisions of Section 177 & 

178 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(iii) Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its notification dated 5th June 2015 

exempted / amended certain provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for 

Government Companies. The Directors of the Company are from NHPC 

Limited, and JKSPDCL. Their performance is evaluated by the respective 

appointing authority. The performance evaluation of the Board is yet to be 

carried out. 

(iv) All the KMPs (other than Directors) and employees of the Company are 

from NHPC Limited and JKSPDCL, their performance evaluation is being 

carried out by their respective reporting officers. The pay structure, 

allowances and other benefits of KMPs and other employees of the 

Company are governed by relevant DPE guidelines. 

(v) Particulars of employees and related disclosures have not been provided 

in the report pursuant to Ministry of Corporate Affairs notification dated 5th 

June 2015 (exemption of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 to 

Government Companies). 

(vi) Your Directors further state that: 

a. There is no change in the nature of business of the Company. 

b. Your Company has complied with applicable Secretarial Standards 

issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI). 

c. Your Company is not having any subsidiary, joint venture or associate 

so far. 

d. No disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items 

as there was no transaction relating to these items during the year 

under report: 

(i) Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

(ii) Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting 

or otherwise. 

(iii) Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of 

the Company under any scheme. 
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e. No significant or material orders passed by the regulators or courts or 

tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s 

operations in future. 

f. No case was filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at 

Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 during 

the year under report. 

g. The Company has not undertaken any recruitment exercise during the 

year. Therefore, information regarding percentage employment of 

Persons with Disability (PwDs) is NIL.  

h. During the year, there were no instances of fraud reported by the 

Auditors of the Company under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 

2013. 

i. No material changes and commitments have occurred after the close 

of the financial year till the date of this report, which affect the financial 

position of the Company. 

j. There is no proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 

Code, 2016. 

k. There was no instance of onetime settlement with any Bank or 

Financial Institution. 

 

27. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMPs) 

 As on 31st March, 2022, the Board comprised of Seven Nominee Directors 

as tabulated under: 

S. No. Name Designation 

1. Shri Indra Deva Dayal  Nominee of JKSPDC Limited- 
Chairman 

2. Shri Yamuna Kumar Chaubey 
 

Nominee of NHPC Limited 

3. Shri Rajendra Prasad Goyal 
 

Nominee of NHPC Limited 

4. Shri Biswajit Basu 
 

Nominee of NHPC Limited 

5. Smt. Kamla Fartyal 
 

Nominee of NHPC Limited 

6. Shri Atal Dulloo, IAS Nominee of JKSPDC Limited 
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7. Shri Nitishwar Kumar, IAS Nominee of JKSPDC Limited 

 

 There were some changes in the Board of Director of the Company during 

 the financial year 2021-22 as under: 

1. Pursuant to order of NHPC Limited, Smt. Kamla Fartyal was appointed as 

Nominee Director w.e.f. 23rd June, 2021, in place of Shri Nurani 

Subramanian Parameshwaran, who ceased to be Nominee Director w.e.f. 

01st June, 2021. 

2. Pursuant to assignment of charge of Administrative Secretary (Finance) by 

Govt. of UT of J&K, Shri Atul Dulloo (IAS) was appointed as Nominee 

Director w.e.f. 16th September, 2021, in place of Shri Arun Kumar Mehta 

(IAS), who ceased to be Nominee Director w.e.f. 17th August, 2021. 

3. Pursuant to assignment of charge of Administrative Secretary (Power) by 

Govt. of UT of J&K, Shri Nitishwar Kumar (IAS) was appointed as Nominee 

Director w.e.f. 21st December, 2021 in place of Shri Rohit Kansal (IAS), who 

ceased to be Nominee Director w.e.f. 08th December, 2021. 

 

  The Board had also appointed Shri Deepak Saigal as Chief Executive 

Officer and Shri Abhishek Dagur as Company Secretary w.e.f. 23rd June, 2021. 

Shri Anuj Kapoor was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f.  

28th December, 2021, 

 

  After closure of the financial year 2021-22, Pursuant to assignment of 

charge of Administrative Secretary (Finance) by Govt. of UT of J&K, Shri Vivek 

Bharadwaj (IAS) was appointed as Nominee Director w.e.f. 23.06.2022 in place 

of Shri Atal Dulloo (IAS), who ceased to be Nominee Director w.e.f. 04th May, 

2022 (evening). 

 

28.     COMMITTEES OF DIRECTORS 

 Pursuant to Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notification dated 5th July, 

2017, Company being a Wholly Owned Subsidiary company is exempted from 

the requirement to constitute Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee. However, as per the DPE guidelines, Company is required to 

constitute Audit Committee comprising of at least three directors, to be headed 
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by an Independent Director and Remuneration Committee comprising of at least 

three Directors, all of whom should be part-time Directors (i.e. Nominee Director 

or Independent Directors). 

 As per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, the power to appoint 

Independent Directors on Board of the Company vests with Administrative 

Ministry i.e. Ministry of Power, Govt. of India. Accordingly, Ministry of Power was 

requested to appoint requisite number of Independent Directors. However, 

Ministry of Power vide letter dated 12.07.2022 had communicated the approval of 

Competent Authority for not pursuing the appointment of Non-official/ 

Independent Director in the Board of JVs/ Wholly owned subsidiaries of NHPC 

Limited. 

29. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 As required under section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the 

 Directors hereby confirm the following: 

i) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting 

standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to 

material departures; 

ii) Directors had selected such Accounting Policies and applied them 

consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 

Company at the end of the financial year 2021-22 and of the profit and loss of 

the Company for that period; 

iii) Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of 

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

iv) Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 

v) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the 

provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and 

operating effectively. 
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ANNEXURE- A 

 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

  

Effective Corporate Governance practices are essential to build a strong 

foundation for successful operation of a commercial enterprise. Governance 

structure identifies the distribution of rights and responsibilities among different 

stakeholders in the Company such as the Board of Directors, managers, 

shareholders, creditors, auditors, regulators, and others and includes the rules 

and procedures for making decisions. It is about commitment towards values, 

ethical business conduct and transparency.  

 

The management of the Company recognizes the inherent values of corporate 

governance and therefore, takes all possible steps to attain highest level of 

governance to enhance the stakeholder’s value. The Company follows the 

Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises 

(CPSEs) issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) (DPE Guidelines), 

Government of India. 

 

2.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

 

 (i) Size of the Board of Directors: 

 The Company is a Government Company within the definition of 

Section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013. According to the Articles of 

Association of the Company, the strength of the Board including the 

Chairman shall not be less than 4 (four) and not more than 15 (fifteen) 

Directors. NHPC Limited and Jammu & Kashmir State Power Development 

Corporation Limited (JKSPDCL) may nominate ‘Nominee Directors’ for its 

respective representation on the Board in proportion of their respective 

equity portion.  
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 (ii) Composition & Category of Board of Directors: 

 

As on 31st March, 2022 the Board comprised of Seven (7) 

non-executive Nominee Directors. Out of which, Four (4) Directors were 

nominated by NHPC Limited, Two (2) Directors were nominated by 

JKSPDCL and Chairman was nominated by Govt. of J&K as nominee of 

JKSPDCL.  

 

During the year under report, Company has no Independent Director 

on its Board. As per Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notification dated 

5th July, 2017, Company being a Joint Venture company of NHPC Limited 

and JKSPDCL is exempted from appointment of Independent Director. 

However, as per the DPE Guidelines at least one-third of the Board 

Members of the Company should be Independent Directors.  

 

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, part-time 

non-official (Independent) directors are to be appointed by the 

Administrative Ministry. Accordingly, Ministry of Power, Government of India 

has been requested for appointment of Independent Directors in the 

Company. In this regard, Ministry of Power has communicated not to pursue 

the appointment of Non-official Independent Director on the Board of JVs/ 

Wholly Owned Subsidiaries of NHPC Limited.. Compliance in respect of 

having at-least one-third of the Board Members as independent directors 

shall be made after appointment of independent directors.  

 

 The composition of the Board and the number of Directorships and 

Committee positions (in Audit Committee and Stakeholder Relationship 

Committee) in other companies held by the Directors as on 31st March, 

2022 is given in Table 1. Attendance of each Director at the Board 

Meetings held during the year 2021-22 is given in Table 2. 
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TABLE 1: COMPOSITION & CATEGORY OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AND DETAILS OF DIRECTORSHIPS AND COMMITTEE POSITIONS IN 

OTHER COMPANIES HELD BY DIRECTORS AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2022 

Sr. 
No. 

Name Category of 
Director 

Number of 
Directorshi
ps held  in 

other 
Companies

* 

Details of 
Committee 

Positions held  in 
other Companies**  

As 
Chairman 

As 
Member 

1) Shri Indra Deva 
Dayal 

Nominee Director -
Chairman 

NIL NIL NIL 

2) Shri Yamuna 

Kumar Chaubey 

Nominee Director 3 NIL 2 

3) Shri Rajendra 
Prasad Goyal 

Nominee Director 4 2 1 

4) Shri Biswajit Basu Nominee Director 5 NIL NIL 

5) Smt. Kamla 
Fartyal1 

Nominee Director 1 NIL NIL 

6) Shri Atul Dulloo2 Nominee Director 14 - - 

7) Shri Nitishwar 
Kumar3 

Nominee Director 7 NIL NIL 

* Directorship held in Indian Companies has been considered. 

**Membership(s)/Chairpersonship(s) of Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship 

Committee held in other companies have been considered. 

1Appointed on the Board of the Company as nominee of NHPC Limited w.e.f. 

23.06.2021. 

2Appointed on the Board of the Company as nominee of JKSPDCL Limited w.e.f. 

16.09.2021. 

3Appointed on the Board of the Company as nominee of JKSPDCL Limited w.e.f. 

21.12.2021. 

Notes: 

1. None of the Directors holds office at the same time as Director in more 

than twenty Companies/ ten Public Companies including alternate 

Directorship(s). Further, none of the Director is a member in more than 

ten Committees or is a Chairman of more than five Committees across 

all the Companies in which he is a Director. 

2. The Directors of the Company do not have any relationship inter-se. 

 

 

TABLE 2: ATTENDANCE OF EACH DIRECTOR AT THE BOARD 
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MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR 2021-22: 

Name of the Directors Board Meeting 
Held Attended 

Shri Indra Deva Dayal 7 7 
Shri N. S. Parameshwaran1 0 0 
Shri Y.K. Chaubey 7 7 
Shri Rajendra Prasad Goyal 7 7 
Shri Biswajit Basu 7 7 
Shri Arun Kumar Mehta2 2 0 
Shri Rohit Kansal3 3 2 
Smt. Kamla Fartyal4 7 7 
Shri Atul Dulloo5 5 4 
Shri Nitishwar Kumar6 4 3 
1Ceased to be Director on the Board of the Company w.e.f. 01.06.2021. 

2Ceased to be Director on the Board of the Company w.e.f. 17.08.2021. 

3Ceased to be Directors on the Board of the Company w.e.f. 08.12.2021. 

 4Appointed on the Board of the Company as nominee of NHPC Limited w.e.f. 

 23.06.2021. 

5Appointed on the Board of the Company as nominee of JKSPDCL Limited w.e.f. 

16.09.2021. 

6Appointed on the Board of the Company as nominee of JKSPDCL Limited w.e.f. 

21.12.2021. 

 

(iii) Number of Board Meetings: Seven Board Meetings were held during 

the FY 2021-22. The details of the Board meetings held during the year 

2021-22 are given in Table 3. 
TABLE 3: NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR 2021-22 

Sr.   
No. 

Meeting 
No. 

Meeting Date Board 
Strength 

No. of 
Directors 
Present 

Attendance 

1. 1s t  
23 r d June, 2021 

7 6 
100% 

2. 2nd   05 t h  July, 2021 7 6  
85.71% 

3. 3 r d   
05 t h  October,  

2021 
 

7  6  
85.71% 

4. 4 t h   28 t h  December, 
2021 

7 7  
100% 

5. 5 t h   
10 t h  January, 

2022 
 

7 7  
100% 

6. 6 t h   12 t h  January, 
2022 

 
7 5  

71.42% 

7. 
06 t h  

Adjourne
d  

25 t h  February, 
2022 

 
7 7 

 
100% 
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(iv) Age limit and tenure of Directors: The Directors nominated by NHPC 

and JKSPDCL/ Govt. of J&K shall hold office at the pleasure of NHPC and 

JKSPDCL/ Govt. of J&K respectively. Further, a Director representing the 

respective nominating authority/ Department shall retire on his ceasing to 

be an official of that Department. 

 

(v) Resume of Directors: A brief profile of directors seeking 

re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting is appended to the 

notice calling the AGM.  

 

(vi) Director’s Compensation & Disclosures: During the year under 

review, the Chairman of the Company (Non-Executive Professional) was 

paid an amount of Rs.12.08 Lakh as remuneration. The Company has also 

paid sitting fee @ Rs.20,000/- per meeting to the Chairman of the 

Company. No commission or performance linked incentive was paid to any 

of the Directors. No stock options were issued during the year either to 

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or employees of the Company. No 

severance fees/ notice period pay is payable to the Directors at the time of 

separation from the Company. 
 

(vii) Board Meetings & Procedures: 

(A) Decision making process: The Company follows a 

systematic procedure for the meetings of the Boards of Directors with 

a view to professionalize its affairs. These procedures seek to 

systematize the decision-making process in Board meetings in an 

informed and efficient manner. 

 

(B) Scheduling and Selection of agenda items for Board 

meetings: 

 Meetings of the Board are convened by giving appropriate notice 

after approval of the Chairman. Detailed agenda notes, 

management reports and other explanatory statements are 

circulated in advance among the members to facilitate 

meaningful, informed and focused decisions during the meeting. 
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Whenever urgent issues need to be addressed, meetings are 

called at a shorter notice or agenda notes are placed on table or 

resolutions are passed by circulation. 

 Whenever it is not possible to attach a document to the agenda 

notes due to its confidential nature, or in special and exceptional 

circumstances, or in case of additional or supplemental items, 

such documents are placed on the table during the meeting with 

the approval of the Chairman/ Directors present at the meeting. 

 Agenda papers are generally circulated after obtaining approval 

of the Chairman. 

 The meetings are generally held through Video Conferencing in 

Delhi/ NCR. 

 As and when required, presentations are made before the Board. 

 Members of the Board have complete access to the information 

pertaining to the Company. Board members are also free to 

recommend any issue that they may consider important for 

inclusion in the agenda. As and when necessary, senior 

management officials are called during the meeting to provide 

additional inputs on the matters being discussed by the Board. 

 Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is a permanent invitee to all the 

Board meetings. 
 

(C) Recording of the Minutes of the Board Meetings: The draft 

Minutes of the proceedings of each Board Meeting are duly 

circulated to all Board members for their comments within fifteen 

days of the conclusion of the Meeting. The Directors communicate 

their comments on the draft minutes within seven days from the date 

of circulation thereof. The final draft of minutes after incorporating 

comments/suggestions, if any, from board members are placed 

before the Chairman for consideration and approval thereof. The 

approved minutes of proceedings of each Board meeting are duly 

recorded in the minutes book within thirty days of the conclusion of 

the meeting. 

 

(D) Follow-up Mechanism: Based on the decisions of the Board, 
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an action taken report on the decisions is presented in subsequent 

meetings of respective Board, which helps in effective follow-up, 

review and reporting on decisions. 

 

(E) Compliance: A compliance report of all applicable provisions 

and statutory requirements under different laws is placed before the 

Board on quarterly basis.  

 

The following agenda items are regularly presented to the Board for 

its consideration/ information: 

 Annual Budgets/Plans and related updates. 

 Disclosure of interest by the Directors about their Directorships, 

Committee positions held by them in other Companies/Firms, their 

shareholding, etc. 

 Award of large value contracts. 

 Details of Related Party Transactions with respect to consultancy 

services assigned to/ rendered by NHPC Limited. 

 Review of Compliance of Laws. 

 Information with respect to status of the Projects including new 

initiatives. 

 Action Taken Report on decisions/ directions of the Board. 

 Annual financial statements of the Company. 

 Directors’ Report 

 Any other information required to be presented to the Board either 

for information or approval as per the requirement of applicable 

laws. 

 

(viii) Code of Conduct: The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for 

Directors and Senior Management Personnel are yet to be formulated. 

However, the Directors and the Senior Management Personnel are 

committed to adhere to the highest standards of business conduct and 

ethics. 

 

(ix) Risk Management: The risk management in the Company is 

undertaken as a part of normal business practice and not as a separate 
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task at set times. 

 

(x) Training of Board Members: The Board of the Company comprises of 

nominees from NHPC Limited and JKSPDCL, who have adequate exposure 

and are well versed with the model and risk profile of the business of the 

Company. 

 

(xi) Functional Role Clarity between Board of Directors and 

Management: As per Articles of Association of the Company, all the 

powers are vested with the Board of Directors of the Company. In order to 

clearly distinguish the role of the Board and the management, the Board of 

the Company has delegated certain powers to the Management of the 

Company. Decision on matters excluded from delegation are taken by the 

Board. The Board is provided with detailed information/ progress by the 

Management on various developments. 

 

3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

Pursuant to Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notification dated 5th July, 

2017, Company being a Joint Venture is exempted from the requirement to 

constitute Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee. 

However, as per the DPE guidelines, Company is required to constitute 

Audit Committee comprising of at least three directors, to be headed by an 

Independent Director and Remuneration Committee comprising of at least 

three Directors, all of whom should be part-time Directors (i.e. Nominee Director 

or Independent Directors) 

 

As per the provisions of Companies Act, 2015, the power to appoint 

Independent Directors on Board of the Company vests with Administrative 

Ministry i.e. Ministry of Power, Govt. of India. Accordingly, request has 

been made to Ministry of Power for appointment of requisite number of 

Independent Directors on Board of the Company. The Board had decided 

to constitute the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee after the 

appointment of Independent Directors. However, Ministry of Power vide letter 

dated 12.07.2022 had communicated the approval of Competent Authority for not 
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pursuing the appointment of Non-official/ Independent Director in the Board of 

JVs/ Wholly owned subsidiaries of NHPC Limited. 

 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide notification dated 5th June, 2015 had 

inter-alia exempted Government Companies from the requirement to specify the 

manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its committees and 

individual directors and review its implementation and compliance. The said 

notification also exempted Government Companies from the requirement of 

providing information in the Directors’ report about the manner, in which annual 

evaluation of the performance of Board, its committees and individual directors 

has been made, in case, the performance of directors is evaluated by the 

Administrative Ministry in Charge of the Company. 

 

The performance of Nominee Directors of the Company is being evaluated by the 

nominating authority. Performance Evaluation criteria for Board and its 

committees has not yet been formulated by the Company. 

 

4. GENERAL MEETINGS: 

Ratle Hydroelectric Power Corporation Limited was incorporated on 1st June, 2021 

therefore as per first proviso of Section 96 of the Companies Act, 2013, the first 

annual general meeting shall be held within a period of nine months from the date 

of closing of the first financial year of the company i.e. upto 31st December, 2022.  

 

5. DETAILS OF SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS PASSED IN THE PREVIOUS 

THREE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS: 

Ratle Hydroelectric Power Corporation Limited was incorporated on 1st June, 

2021. The first Annual General Meeting of the Company is yet to be held..  

 

6. DISCLOSURES: 

(i) Related Party Transactions: During the financial year 2021-22, the 

Company has not entered into any material transaction as contract or 

arrangement with any of its related parties. 

(ii) No penalty or strictures were imposed on the Company by any 

statutory authority, on any matter related to any guidelines issued by 

Government, during the preceding three years. 
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(iii) Whistle Blower Policy: The Company has adopted Whistle Blower 

Policy of NHPC Limited. Further, no personnel has been denied 

access to the board of Directors. 

(iv) There is no independent Director on the Board of the Company, 

hence the Company could not comply with the various provisions 

regarding Independent Director as per Guidelines issued by the 

Department of Public Enterprises.   

(v) The Company is not having any subsidiary Company. 

(vi) No Presidential Directives have been issued to the Company during 

the financial year 2021-22. 

(vii) No item of expenditure was debited in the books of accounts, which 

are not for the purpose of business. 

(viii) There was no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the 

Directors vis-a-vis the Company during the year. 

(ix) There were no expenses incurred which are personal in nature and 

incurred for the Board and Management. None of the Senior 

Management personnel of the Company have any financial or 

commercial transactions with the Company except their 

remuneration. 

(x) Details of administrative and office expenses as a percentage of 

total expenses vis-à-vis financial expenses and reasons for 

increase are given below: 

The Project of the Company is under construction. Therefore, the 

expenditure is being capitalized and charged to Work-in-progress. 

Accordingly, no information regarding administrative and office 

expenses as a percentage of total expenses vis-à-vis financial 

expenses has been provided.  
 

(xi) Accounting Treatment: 

The Significant Accounting Policies of the Company forming part of 

the Financial Statements, as approved by the Board of Directors, are 

compliant with the Indian Accounting Standards notified under the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and 

subsequent amendments thereto. 
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7. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION: 

The annual financial statement of the Company are provided to members 

in physical form as well as in electronic form. The Company is not required 

to publish quarterly results. 

 

8. INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS:   

 

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:  

 Date of Annual General Meeting: 28th September, 2022 

 Day and Time: Wednesday at 03:00 P.M. (IST) 

In order to curb the spread of COVID-19 in the country and in line with the 

relaxations extended by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide circular 

dated 05.05.2022 read with MCA circular dated 05.05.2020, the AGM of the 

Company for financial year 2021-22 shall be held through Video 

Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM). However, the 

deemed venue of AGM shall be NHPC Office Complex, Sector-33, 

Faridabad. The Notice of AGM may be referred for necessary details/ 

instructions regarding participation in the AGM. 

 

9. AUDIT QUALIFICATION: 

There are no adverse remarks by the Statutory Auditor. The Comptroller 

and Auditor General of India (C&AG) has conduct supplementary audit of 

financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2022. 

The C&AG has communicated that they have no comments to offer upon 

or supplement to statutory auditor’s report. 

 

10. COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE: 

A Certificate from M/s A. K. Rastogi & Associates, Company Secretaries, 

confirming the compliance or otherwise with the conditions of Corporate 

Governance as stipulated under the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for 

Central Public Sector Enterprises 2010, is forming part of the Directors’ Report. 
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ANNEXURE-C 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

I. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT 

Electricity is an important building block in human development and acts as a 

key factor in determining the economic development of any country. In view of 

the pace of growth of Indian Economy, Power Sector has an inevitable role in 

country’s sustained industrial and economic growth. Unlike other 

commodities, the dynamics of supply and demand does not apply to power, 

as it cannot be stored. India has witnessed a robust growth in power sector 

since independence. The total installed capacity of all the power stations of 

India as on March 31, 2022 was 399496.61 MW with the contribution of 

236108.72 MW, 46722.52 MW, 109885.38 MW and 6780 MW from Thermal, 

Hydro, Renewable Energy Sources and Nuclear power respectively1. 

 

India is shifting gradually to become an energy surplus country. During the FY 

2021-22, peak power demand witnessed a growth of 6.73%, due to boosting 

industrial and residential load.  Hydropower assumes greater importance to 

provide stability to the electric grid due to the intermittent availability of solar 

and wind to produce power. In addition to reducing carbon emissions, Local 

area development, providing employment opportunities, hydropower energy 

provides additional benefits from storage projects like flood moderation, 

Irrigation, tourism etc. besides water and energy security in long term.  

 

Jammu & Kashmir is bestowed with an estimated hydro-power potential, out 

of which 14,867 MW has already been identified by Central Electricity 

Authority. The Hydropower Generation Capacity on the UT of J&K is expected 

to double in next 3 years from the existing capacity of 3500 MW, which will 

make J&K power surplus. 

 

To contribute to the capacity augmentation in UT of J&K, your Company is 

executing Ratle Hydroelectric Project (850 MW) in the Kishtwar District of UT 

of J&K. The 850 MW Ratle Hydropower project is a run-of-river scheme over 
                                                 
1
 Source: Central Electricity Authority 

42



 
RHPCL- Annual Report 2021-22 

River Chenab and falls under the Indus Water Treaty 1960 between India and 

Pakistan. The project has an installed capacity of 850 MW (4×205 MW + 1×30 

MW) and shall generate 3,136 million units in a 90 per cent dependable year.  

 

II. STRENGTH 

We believe that the following are the primary competitive strengths of the 

Company: 

 

Power purchase agreements 

As per the provisions of MOU, GoJK shall be entitled to have first right of 

refusal for purchase of power from the JVC in proportion to the share of 

JKSPDC in the equity of JVC (i.e. 49%) at regulated tariff. However, JKSPDC 

is yet to convey their option for purchase / offtake of 49% power from the 

project. Whereas, NHPC Limited (promoter with 51% share) has already 

identified prospective buyers for purchase of 51% power from the project and 

initiated the process of signing of Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with the 

beneficiary DISCOMs.  

 

Competent and committed workforce 

In terms of Articles of Association of the Company, the manpower required for 

the implementation of Ratle HE Project shall be provided or lend to the 

Company on secondment/ transfer/ deputation basis by NHPC Limited and 

Jammu & Kashmir State Power Development Corporation Limited 

(JKSPDCL). The workforce deputed by NHPC and JKSPDC has extensive 

experience in the industry. The skill, industry knowledge and operating 

experience of these executives provide the Company with a significant 

competitive advantage. 

 

III. OPPORTUNITIES 

The Hydro-thermal mix imbalances, ever increasing renewable power, 

peaking power shortages and frequency variations have turned the attention 

of the Indian Government towards the development of Hydro Power. India has 

a huge Hydro Power potential which is still untapped. This gives opportunities 

to RHPCL for adding to its capacity in the years to come. 
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IV. THREATS, WEAKNESSES, RISKS AND CONCERNS 

Management perceives following as threats, weaknesses, risks and concerns 

in construction of Hydro Power Projects: 

 

Land Acquisition 

Hydropower projects are generally located in hilly, difficult and remote 

terrains, which requires substantial area of land for submergence and 

development of infrastructure including project's components. The process of 

land acquisition is quite cumbersome. 

Geological Surprises 

Hydropower projects generally involve substantial underground works of 

headrace tunnel and surge shaft. Geological surprises associated with 

underground work may result in time and cost over-run. 

Natural Calamities 

As hydropower project are generally proposed in hilly terrains and are 

generally subject to associated geological adversities such as hill slope 

failures, road blocks, flash floods and cloud bursts etc., which may cause 

severe set-back in construction of projects. 

Unexpected complexities 

Development of a Project may be subject to unexpected complexities and 

delays in execution, which may result in time and cost overrun for developing 

projects, compared to estimates. The generation capacity may vary 

substantially because of variations in hydrology due to climatic conditions, 

which may cause significant variation in revenue earnings of the Company. 

Long Gestation Period 

Hydroelectric Power Projects are capital intensive and have a long gestation 

period. 

Increase in cost 

Hydroelectric power projects have long gestation period and are also subject 

to various geological surprises & adversities resulting in time and cost 

overruns, compared to estimates. The cost overruns may lead to increase in 

tariff. 
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V. SEGMENT WISE OR PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE 

Development of Ratle Hydroelectric power project (850MW) in Chenab river 

Basin and any other project entrusted to the Company to generation and sale 

power is the only business of the Company. Further, the Company is having 

a single geographical segment as it is operating in the UT of Jammu & 

Kashmir only. 

 

V. OUTLOOK 

Electricity is critical to livelihoods and essential to well-being. The potential 

for growth in energy demand and energy infrastructure in India remains 

enormous. The country’s continued industrialization and urbanization will 

make huge demands of its energy sector. Your Company is committed to 

make its contribution in ensuring availability of reliable electricity to all 

sections of consumers in the UT of J&K.  Despite the logistic challenges due 

to remote location and the fact the state has tough terrain, your company is 

committed to overcome them.  

 

Considering the high unexploited hydropower potential of the Country, ample 

opportunities are available in the field of hydro power development. As the 

entire world is now focusing on the ‘net zero’ emissions, there exists a huge 

potential for the hydro industry to make use of the emission reduction 

potential. Further, Hydro plants can also take care of the variability and 

resultant requirements of grid stability due to large scale injection of power 

from intermittent RE sources (solar & wind) into the grid. In addition to above, 

initiatives of Government of India shall strengthen the road ahead for 

development of hydro power sector in the Country. 

 

VI. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

The Company has adopted the Delegation of Powers (DOP) of NHPC 

Limited. The Organizational structure is well defined in terms of the 

structured authority/ responsibility involved at a particular hierarchy level.  

M/s GASM DANSR and Co., Faridabad has been appointed as the Internal 

Auditor of the Company for FY 2021-22. The efficacy of internal control 

systems has also been pointed out by Statutory Auditors in their report 

forming part of Annual Report. 

45



 
RHPCL- Annual Report 2021-22 

 

VII. DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO 

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

Ratle Hydroelectric Power Corporation Limited was incorporated on 

01.06.2021 and at present, is in the process of development of 850MW Ratle 

hydroelectric power project in the UT of J&K. The 850 MW Ratle Hydropower 

project is a run-of-river scheme over River Chenab in Kishtwar district of UT of 

J&K. The project falls under the Indus Water Treaty 1960 between India and 

Pakistan. The project with an installed capacity of 850 MW (4×205 MW + 

1×30 MW) shall generate 3,136 million units in a 90 per cent dependable 

year. The sanctioned cost of the project is Rs.5,281.94 crore at 

November’2018 P.L. The project will have a levelized tariff of Rs. 3.92 per unit 

and first year tariff of Rs.3.62 per unit.  

 

The EPC contract for the construction of Project has been awarded to M/s 

Megha Engineering & Infrastructures Limited (MEIL). 

 

At present, construction activities of the Project are going on. During the year 

Company has earned an amount of Rs.209.39 lakh on account of interest on 

term deposit of share capital, which is shown under other income. The 

expenditure incurred is mainly on construction of Ratle HE Project. The 

Company has appointed M/s GASM DANSR & CO., Faridabad to conduct the 

internal audit of the Company for the year 2021-22. Management has suitably 

replied to the observations of Internal Auditor. Further, compliance of 

recommendation/observation is under process. 

 

Since, the Company was incorporated on 01.06.2022 and the financial 

statements were prepared for the first time, therefore, corresponding figures 

of previous financial year does not form part of this section.  

 

A. RESULTS OF OPERATIONS  

The company is in initial stage of development of project and as such there is 

no sale of energy.  The income of the Company during financial year 2021-22 

comprises of other income of Rs. 209.39 lakh on account of interest on share 

capital deposited with SBI. 
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During the financial year 2021-22 the expenditure was Rs 262.81 lakhs. All 

the other expenditure such as Capital works in progress, establishment, 

survey & investigation are booked under CWIP/EAC. CWIP/EAC added 

during the year 2021-22 is to the tune of Rs.12359 lakh. Total EAC/CWIP as 

on 31st March 2022 stands at Rs. 12359 lakh. 

 

B. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 

The PBT was of the order of Rs.(-) 53.42 lakh in financial year 2021-22. 

 

C. TAX EXPENSES 

The tax outgo on the profits was of the order of Rs. 10.58 lakh in financial 

year 2021-22. 

 

D. SOURCE OF FUNDING 

NHPC and JKSPDC has contributed Rs.18670 lakh towards the equity of the 

Company including share application money. The unspent portion of it has 

been kept in Fixed Deposits with State Bank of India and is the only source of 

liquidity till 31.03.2022. The balance in such fixed deposits as on 31.03.2022 

was Rs. 17494 Lakh. Apart from this a sum of Rs. 287.41 Lakh was held as 

cash in the current account for day to day requirements. 

 

The net cash flow from operating and investing activities (net effect of inflow 

due to Bank Deposits/Interest and outflow due to CWIP/Fixed Assets) was 

Rs.13680.55 Lakh in financial year 2021-22. 

 

E. DISCUSSION OF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 

Balance Sheet Highlights 

                  (Rs. in lakh) 

Assets As on 31st March 2022 

Non – Current Assets 

Net Tangible  Fixed Assets 12450.73 

Non-Current Investments - 

Long term loans and advance - 

Net Intangible assets 1.30 
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Non-current Tax assets 50.34 

Other non-current assets 0.16 

Current Assets 

Current Investments - 

Inventories - 

Trade Receivables - 

Cash & Bank Balances 17781.42 

Short-term Loans and Advances - 

Other Current Assets 52.97 

Total 30336.91 

 

F. FINANCIAL CONDITION 

 

Net Worth 

The net worth of the Company at the end of financial year 2021-22 was 

Rs. 18627.15 lakh. 

 

Net Fixed Assets 

The Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) before and after depreciation, 

were Rs. 108.52 lakh and Rs. 91.73 lakh as of March 31, 2022. Since the 

project is at the initial stage of construction, no major assets were either 

created or procured till 31.03.2022.  

 

Loans and Advances (Current & Non-Current) 

Nil 

 

Cash and Bank Balances 

Cash and bank balances consist of cash surplus as on the balance sheet 

date in our current account and short term deposits. Our cash and bank 

balances as of March 31, 2022 were Rs.13680.55 Lakh and Rs.4100.87 

Lakh respectively. 
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Liabilities and Provisions 

(Rs. in lakh) 

 As of March 31, 2022 

Non-Current Liabilities  

Long Term Borrowings - 

Deferred Tax Liabilities - 

Other Long Term Liabilities - 

Long Term Provisions - 

Current Liabilities  

Trade Payable 540.74 

Other Current / Financial liabilities 11097.01 

Short Term Provisions & Others 72.01 

Total 11709.76 

 

Other Long Term Liabilities 

There are no long term liabilities either in this financial year or in previous 

financial year. 

  

 Trade payable  

The Trade Payables stood at Rs.540.74 lakh in financial year 2021-22 

consisting mainly of Sundry creditors and Consultancy Charges payable. 

 

Other Current & Financial Liabilities 

Other current liabilities stood at Rs.11097.01 lakh in financial year 2021-22 

consisting mainly of amount payable to JKSPDC / GoJK against transfer of 

assets. 

 

VIII. DEVELOPMENT IN HUMAN RESOURCES, INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

FRONT, INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED 

The entire workforce of the Company has been deputed by NHPC Limited 

and Jammu & Kashmir State Power Development Corporation Limited. 

 

INDUSTRIAL RELATION & STAFF WELFARE 

Industrial relations between employees and employer was cordial and 
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harmonious. No man-day was lost on account of strike / lock-out. Staff 

welfare activities were given special consideration. Workers were 

encouraged to participate in the areas concerning their working conditions, 

welfare etc. Some of the staff welfare activities carried out by the Company 

are as under: 

● Celebration of various festivals like Diwali, Holi, Eid etc. 

● Gym, Sports and other Recreational activities etc. 

 

RESERVATION FOR SC/ST/OBC 

The Company is making a modest contribution for the socio-economic 

development of SC / ST and other weaker sections of the society. Since, in 

terms of the Promoters’ Agreement between NHPC Limited, JKSPDC and 

Government of J&K, the staff for the Company is to be provided by 

promoters, therefore, no recruitments are being done by the Company. 

However, both the promoters are following reservation and relaxation as per 

guidelines issued by the Government from time to time. 

 

WELFARE OF PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 

There was no physically challenged employee in the Company as on 

31.03.2022. 

 

 
IX. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND CONSERVATION, 

TECHNOLOGICAL CONSERVATION, RENEWABLE ENERGY 

DEVELOPMENTS, FOREIGN EXCHANGE CONSERVATION 

Information regarding technology absorption has been included elsewhere as 

part of Directors’ Report. 

 

X. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

 
The views and forward-looking statements contained in this report are based 

on reasonable assumptions and subject to certain risks and uncertainty that 

could cause actual results to differ from those reflected in such statements. 

Readers should carefully review the other information in this report and in the 

Company’s periodic reports. The Company undertakes no obligation to 

50



publicly update or revise any of these forward-looking statements whether as 

a result of new information, future events or otherwise. 

The financial figures shown above are based on the audited results of the 

Company. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

(In~~ 
Chairman 

DIN: 09189651 

Date: 14 - oC) - 2.o'2-'L 

Place: K bkt-Wt:01, ::1 ~ ~ 
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ANNEXURE-D 

DISCLOSURE REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 134 (3) (M) OF THE COMPANIES 

ACT, 2013 ON ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS READ WITH RULE 8 OF THE COMPANIES 

(ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014. 

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: NIL 

The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: NIL 

The capita l investment on energy conservation equipments: NIL 

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION. 

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption - NIL 

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product 

development or import substitution - NIL 

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years 

reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)-

a. the details of technology imported - Not Applicable 

b. the year of import - Not Applicable 

c. whether the technology being fully absorbed - Not Applicable 

d. if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place and 

the reasons thereof- Not Applicable 

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development - NIL 

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO. 

The foreign exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the 

foreign exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual outflow - NIL 

Date: 14 -01 - 2.o2..2... 

Place: k~~c81_, :1 ~ ~ 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

. (In~~\~ / 
Chair~ 

DIN: 09189651 
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UDIN: 22551913AKUXYC3801 Mobile:+91-9596824798 
Phone 0191-3567797 

Email: consult.gpa@gmail.com 

Gupta Palwal & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

Ist Floor, House No 29 Sector 9, Trikuta Nagar, Jamms 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (REVISED AS ON 12.06.2022) 

To the Members of Ratle Hydroelectric Power Corporation Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Ratle Hydroelectric 
Power Corporation Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 

31, 2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), 
Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accountin9 

policies and Other Explanatory Notes for the year ended on that date (hereinafter referred to 

as "Financial Statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give theinformation required by the 

Companies Act 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of 
the Company as at March 31, 2022, and loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the 

year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 

in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of 
the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

The company is constructing Ratle Hydroelectric Project (850 MW) as such the expenditure 
is being done on bringing the revenue generating units and there is no source of revenue at 
present. The revenue of company is only from interest income earned on short term surplus 
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funds. During audit and discussions with management we did not found any key audit matter 

required to be communicated. 

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information to be included in the Annual Report, but does 
not include the standalone financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. The 
other information as stated above is expected to be made available to us after the 

date of this auditors' report. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other 

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility 
is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available, and, in 

doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our 

audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

When we read the other information as stated above and if we conclude that there is 
a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those 
charged with governance and describe necessary actions required as per applicable 

laws and regulations. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 

Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), 
Profit or Loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian accounting Standards 

specified under section 133 of the Act. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concero, basisof 
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accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's 
financial reporting process. 

Auditors' Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with Standard on Auditing (SAs) will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control; 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system with 
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls; 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management; 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may castsignificant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 

attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the standalone 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained-up-to the 
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date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and 

.Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone 
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 

manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements 
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be 
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in () planning 
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial 
statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matters 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1) As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"). 
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 
143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

I) Based on the verification of books of account of the Company and according to 
information and explanations given to us, we give in "Annexure B" a report on the 
Directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India in terms of Section 
143(5) of the Act: 
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I1) Further to our comments in the annexure referred to in the paragraph above, as 

required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a)we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

c)the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 

Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 

Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act; 

e) in terms of Notification no. G.S.R. 463(E) dated 05th June 2015 issued by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs, provisions of Section 164(2) of the Act regarding disqualifications of the 

Directors, are not applicable as it is a Government Company; 

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 

separate Report in "Annexure C". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the 

adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal control; and 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 
standalone financial statements - Refer Note no. 34 para 1 to the standalone financial 

statements; 

i) The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses against long-term cotracts 
including derivative contracts and thereby requirement for making provision in this respect is 

not applicable to the Company; 

ii) There have been no amounts which were required to be transfered to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv) As per notification number G.S.R. 463(E) dated 5th June, 2015 issued by Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs, section 197 of the Act as regards the managerial remuneration is not 
applicable to the Company, since it is a Government Company. 

v () The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other 
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or 

invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 

funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Intermediary shail, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Uitimate 
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Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uitimate 

Beneficiaries; 

(i) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other 

than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company 

from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, 

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

(ii) Based on such audit procedures we consider reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused to believe that the 

representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) contain any material mis-statement. 

(vi) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the company. 

(vii) The company has not used accounting software for maintaining its books of account 

which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility. 

UDIN: 22551913AKUXYC3801 

GUPTA PALWAL & ASsOCIATES 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

FRN 02875ON & ASSO PALWA 

CA 
CA DHEERAJ KUMÁRPALWAL AC 
(PARTNER) 
MNo 551913 

Date: 12.06.2022 LOUNT 

Place: Jammu 
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Annexure-A 
(Annexure "A" Referred to in paragraph I under 'Report on Other Legal and 

Regulatory Requirements' of our report of even date) 

Name of Unit: RATLE HYDROELECTRIC POWER CORPORATION LIMITED 

Disclosure for reporting of matters to be included in Auditor's Report as per 

Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020. 

Place 

(a) (A) whether the company is maintaining proper records showing full 
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and 

Equipment 
REPLY: Yes. the company is maintaining proper records showing fullI 
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, 

Plant and Equipment 

(B)whether the company is maintaining proper records showing full 

particulars of intangible assets; 

REPLY: Yes. The company is maintaining proper records showing full 
particulars of intangible assets 

(b) whether these Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically 
verified by the management at reasonable intervals; whether any material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification and if so, whether 
have been properly dealt with in the books of account 

e same 

REPLY: As per the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Property, Plant 
and Equipment have been physically verified by the management once 
during the year which in our opinion is reasonable considering that 
company has been incorporated on 01.06.2022 only and no significant 
transactions have taken place so far. No diserepancies has been reported on 

such verification 

(c) whether the title deeds of all the immovable properties. (other than 
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are 
duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are 

held in the name of the company. If not, provide the details thereof in the 

format below: 
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Gross Held Whether Period held Reason 

Description Carrying Promoter indicate for not in 

being held 
in name of 

value Director range 
where 

name 

or their 

relative 
of Property of 

appropriate company* 

employee 

also 
indicate if 

in dispute 

Reply There is no immovable property with the Company as on 

31.03.2022. 

d) Whether the Company has revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment 

(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year and, if 

so, whether the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer; 

specify the amount of change, if change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the 

net carrying value of each class of Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible

assets; 

REPLY: No. The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and 

Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both 

during the year 

(e) Whether any proceedings have been initiated or are pending_against the 
company for holding any Benami property under the "Benami Transactions 

(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and Rules made thereunder; if so, whether the Company 

has appropriately disclosed the details in its financial statements; 

REPLY: No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the 
company for holding any Benami property under the "Benami Transactions 

(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and Rules made thereunder. 

(a) whether physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable 
intervals by the management and whether, in the opinion of the auditor, the 
coverage and procedure of such verification by the managenment is appropriate; 
whether any discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of 
inventory were noticed and if so, whether they have been properly dealt with in 

the books of account; 

(i) 

REPLY As informed, the inventories of the Company except for 
inventories in transit, have been physically verified by the 
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management internally once during the year. 

(b) whether during any point of time of the year, the Company has been 

sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, from 

banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets: whether 
the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks or 

financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the 

Company. If not. give details. 

REPLY: No, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits 

in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions 

on the basis of security of current assets 

(iii) whether during the year the company has made investments in, provided any 

guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, 
secured or unsecured to companies, firms. Limited Liability Partnerships or any 

other parties. If so, 

(a) whether during the year the company has provided loans or provided 
advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any 

other entity [not applicable to companies whose principal business is to give 

loans]. if so, indicate- 

REPLY: As per the information and explanations given to us and on the 

basis of our examination of the records of the Company during the year the 

company has not provided loans or provided advances in the nature of 

loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity 

(A) the aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the 
balance sheet date with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or 

security to subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. 

REPLY: Not applicable to company 

(B) the aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the 

balance sheet date with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or 

security to parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. 

REPLY: Not applicable to company 

(b) whether the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the 
terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans 

and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company's interest 
REPLY: Not applicable to company &A A PAL 
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(c) in respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans whether the schedule 
of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and 

whether the repayments or receipts are regular; 

REPLY: Not applicable to company 

(d) 
ninety days, and whether reasonable steps have been taken by the company for 

recovery of the principal and interest; 

if the amount is overdue, state the total amount overdue for more than 

REPLY: Not applicable to company 

whether any loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen 
due during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to 

settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties; If so, specify the 

aggregate amount of such dues renewed or extended or settled by fresh loans and 
the percentage of the aggregate to the total loans or advances in the nature of 

loans granted during the year. [Not applicable to companies whose principal 

business is to give loans]: 

(e) 

REPLY: Not applicable to company 

(f whether the Company has granted any loans or advances in the nature of 
loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of 

repayment; if so, specify the aggregate amount, percentage thereof to the total 
loans granted, aggregate amount of loans granted to Promoters, related parties as 

defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 

REPLY: Not applicable to company 

in respect of loans. investments. guarantees, and security whether provisions of 
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with. If 

not. provide the details thereof. 

(iv) 

REPLY: Not applicable to company 

in respect of deposits accepted by the Company or amounts which are deenied to 
be deposits, whether the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the 
provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies 
Act. 2013 and the rules framed thereunder. where applicable. have been 
complied with? If not, the nature of such contraventions be stated; If an order has 
been passed by Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or 

(v 
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Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal. whether the 
same has been complied with or not? 

REPLY Not applicable to company 

(vi) whether maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central 
Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act and 
whether such accounts and records have been so made and maintained 

REPLY: Not applicable to company 

(vii) (a) whether the company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues 
including Goods and Service Tax, provident fund. employees' state 

insurance, income-tax. sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of 
excise, value added tax. cess and any other statutory dues to the 

appropriate authorities and if not, the extent of the arrears of 
outstanding statutory dues as on the last day of the financial year 
concermed for a period of more than six months from the date they 
became payable, shall be indicated; 

REPLY The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues 
including Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, employees' state 
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, 
value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate 
authorities 

(b) where statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) have not been 
deposited on account of any dispute, then the amounts involved and the 
forum where dispute is pending shall be mentioned. (A mere 
representation to the concerned Department shall not be treated as a 

dispute). 

REPLY: Not applicable in case of company 

(vii) whether any transactions not recorded in the books of account have been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under 
the Income Tax Act, 1961; if so, whether the previously unrecorded income has 
been properly recorded in the books of account during the year'? 

REPLY: No 

(ix) (a) whether the company has defaulted in repayment of loans or other 
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender? If yes, the 
period and the amount of default to be reported as per the format below: 

Nature Whether of Name 
borrowings. | lender* 

including 

of Amount 
not paid | principal 

due or 

No. of Remarks, 

days 
delay or 

if any 

on 
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debt date interest unpaid 
securities 

lender 
wise details 

be to 

provided in 
of case 

defaults to 
banks, 
financial 
institutions 
and 

Government. 

REPLY: No. The company has not availed any loan from any lender 

(b) Whether the company is a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or other lender? 

REPLY No. The company has not availed any loan from any lender 

(c) Whether term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were 
obtained; if not, the amount of loan so diverted and the purpose for which it 
is used may be reported 

REPLY: No. The company has not availed any loan from any lender 

(d) whether funds raised on short term basis have been utilised for long term 
purposes? If yes, the nature and amount to be indicated 

REPLY No. The company has not availed any loan from any lender 

funds from any entity or person on (e) whether the Company has taken any 
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint 
ventures? If so, details thereof with nature of such transactions and the 
amount in each case 

REPLY: No funds have been taken from any entity or person on account of 
or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures 

(whether the Company has raised loans during the year on the pledge of 
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies? If 
so. give details thereof and also report if the company has defaulted in 
repayment of such loans raised. 

REPLY: Company has not raised any loan during the year on the pledge of 
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companics 
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(a) whether moneys raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) during the year were applied for the purposes for 
which those are raised. If not, the details together with delays or default and 
subsequent rectification, if any, as may be applicable, be reported; 

(x) 

REPLY No money has been raised by way of initial public offer or further 
publie offer (including debt instruments) during the year 

(b) whether the Company has made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully. partially or optionally 
convertible) during the year and if so. whether the requirements of Section 42 

and Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with and the 
funds raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised. If 

not. provide details in respect of amount involved and nature of non-compliance 

REPLY : No preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 

convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) has been 

made during the year 

(a) whether any fraud by the company or any fraud on the Company has been 

noticed or reported during the year; If yes, the nature and the amount involved is 

to be indicated; 

(xi) 

REPLY : No fraud by the company or any fraud on the Company has been 
noticed or reported during the year 

(b) whether any report under sub-Section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 with the Central Government? 

REPLY- No 

(c) whether the auditor has considered whistle-blower complaints, if any, 
received during the year by the Company? 

REPLY: No whistle-blower compliant has been reported during the year 

(a) whether the Nidhi Company has complied with the Net Owned Funds to 
Deposits in the ratio of 1:20 to meet out the liability 

(xii) 

REPLY: Not applicable to conmpany 

(b) whether the Nidhi Company is maintaining ten per eent unencumbered tern1 
deposits as specified in the Nidhi Rules, 2014 to meet out the liability: 

REPLY: Not applicable to company 

(c). whether there has been any defaull in payment of interest on deposits or 
repayment thereof for any period and ifso, the details thereof 
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REPLY: Not applicable to company 

(xii) whether all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 
177 and 188 of Companies Act where applicable and the details have been 
disclosed in the Financial Statements cte., as required by the applicable 

accounting standards; 

REPLY: Yes. All transactions with the related parties are in compliance 
with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act where applicable and the 

details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements ete., as required by 

the applicable accounting standards; 

(a) whether the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the 

size and nature of its business? 
(xiv) 

REPLY: The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the 

size and nature of its business 

(b) Whether the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were 

considered by the statutory auditor?

REPLY: Yes. The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under 

audit were considered by the statutory auditor 

whether the company has entered into any non-cash transactions with directors 
or persons connected with him and if so, whether the provisions of section 192 

of Companies Act have been complied with; 

(xv 

REPLY: The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 

directors or persons connected with himn 

(a) whether the company is required to be registered under section 45-1A of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and if' so, whether the registration has been 

obtained. 

(xvi) 

REPLY The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A 

of the Reserve Bank of India Aet, 1934 

b) whether the Company has conducted any Non-Banking Financial or 

Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) 
from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 

REPLY:The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or 
Housing Finance activities 

(c) whether the Company is a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined 
under the Regulations by the Rescrve Bank of India? If so, whether it 
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continues to fulfil the criteria of a CIC and In case the company is an 

exempted or unregistered CIC. whether it continues to fulfil such criteria 

REPLY: No, the company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as 

defined under the Regulations by the Reserve Bank of India 

(d) Whether the Group has more than one CIC as part of the Group, If yes, 

indicate the number of CIC's which are part of the Group. 

REPLY: No. 

whether the Company has incurred cash losses in the Financial Year and in the 

immediately preceding Financial year? If so, state the amount of cash losses (xvii) 

REPLY: No 

whether there has been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year? 

If so, whether the auditor has taken into consideration the issues, objections or 

concerns raised by the outgoing auditors? 

(xviii) 

REPLY: No, there has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors 

during the year 

on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of 

financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 

accompanying the financial statements, the auditor's knowledge of the Board of 

Directors and management plans, whether the auditor is of the opinion that no 

material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is 

capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when 

they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 

(xix) 

REPLY: In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 

given to us by the Management of the company, the company is capable of 

meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they

fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date 

(a) whether. in respect of other than ongoing projects, the company has 

transferred unspent amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the 

Companies Act within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial 

year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of 

the said Act. 

(xx) 

REPLY: Not applicable to company with respeet to financial year 2021-22 

whether there have been any qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective 

auditors in the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reportsof the 
companies included in the consolidated financial statements? If yes, indicate the 

details of the companies and the paragraph numbers of the CARO report 

containing the qualifications or adverse remarksS 

(xXi) 
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REPLY: Not applicable to company 

UDIN: 22551913AKUXYC3801 
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Annexure-B 

Name of Unit: RATLE HYDROELECTRIC POWER CORPORATION LIMITED 

(Annexure "B" Referred to in paragraph Il under 'Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements' of our report of even date) 

Directions indicating the areas to be examined by the Statutory Auditors during the course 

of audit of annual accounts of (Name of Unit) for the year 2021-22 issued by the 

Comptroller & Auditor General of India under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013: 

SI. Auditors' Reply Directions 

No. 
Whether the Company has system in According 

place to process all the accounting| explanations given to us and based on our 

transactions through IT system? If yes,| audit, all accounting transactions are routed 

the implications of processing of through Microsoft Office system. Period end 

accounting transactions outsides IT| Financial Statements are compiled offline 

system on the integrity of the based 

accounts along with the financial generated from Microsoft Office system. No 

implications, if any, may be stated. 

to the information and 

balances and transactions on 

IT software such as ERP/SAP is available with 

the company. 

We have neither been informed nor we have 

come across during the course of our audit| 

any accounting transactions having impact on 
the integrity of the accounts along with the 
financial implications which have been 

processed outside the IT system. 

Whether there is any restructuring of| According to information and explanations 
ases of Biven to us and based on our audit, there is 

of no case of restructuring of an existing loan or 

cases of waiver/write off of debts / loans / 

2 
loan or an existing 

off waiver/write 

debts/loans/interest etc. made by . 

lender to the Company due to the | interest etc. made by lender to the Company. 

Company's inability to repay the 

loan? If yes, the financial impact may 

be stated. Whether such cases are 
properly accounted for? (In case, 

lender is a Government company,| 

then this direction is also applicable 
AL &A 
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Annexure-C 

Name of Unit: RATLE HYDROELECTRIC POWER CORPORATION LIMITED 

Annexure "C" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph ll () under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements' of our report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under 

Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 

Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ratle 

Hydroelectric Power Corporation Limited ("the Company") as of 31st March, 2022 in 

conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 

on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for lInternal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 

financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 

by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 

adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 

and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 

financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the 

Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
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reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 

reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 

material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 

the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 

obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 

the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 

depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system 

over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 

reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 

records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 

accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on 

the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

ecause of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
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subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 

policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 

with reference to financial reporting and such internal financial controls with reference to 

financial reporting were operating effectively during the FY ended on March 31, 2022, 

based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by 

the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
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UDIN: 22551913AILONL8684 Mobile: +91-9596824798 
Phone:0191-3567797 

Email: consult.gpa@gmail.com 

Gupta Palwal ·& Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

Ist Floor, House No 29 Sector 9, Trikuta Nagar, Jammu 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Members of Ratle Hydroelectric Power Corporation Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Ratle Hydroelectric 
Power Corporation Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 
31, 2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), 
Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and Other Explanatory Notes for the year ended on that date (hereinafter referred to 
as "Financial Statements"). · 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of 
the Company as at March 31, 2022, and profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for the 
year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 
in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of 
the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

The company is constructing Ratle Hydroelectric Project (850 MW) as such the expenditure 
is being done on bringing the revenue generating units and there is no source of revenue at 
present. The revenue of company is only from interest income earned on short term surplus 
funds. During audit and discussions with management we did not found any key audit matter 
required to be communicated. - ' · · 
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Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information to be included in the Annual Report, but does 
not include the standalone financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. The 
other information as stated above is expected to be made available to us after the 
date of this auditors' report. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, .our responsibility 
is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available, and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

When we read the other information as stated above and if we conclude that there is 
a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those 
charged with governance and describe necessary actions required as per applicable 
laws and regulations. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), 
Profit or Loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian accounting Standards 
specified under section 133 of the Act. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of t.he 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation· and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. --...,.....,..~.,, 
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Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's 
financial reporting prqcess. 

Auditors' Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with Standard on Auditing (SAs) will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control; 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system with 
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls; 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management; 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the standalone 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and --.-.... 07~·--·o 
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone 
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements 
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be 
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial 
statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matters 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I) As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), 
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 
143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

II) Based on the verification of books of account of the Company and according to 
information and explanations given to us, we give in "Annexure B" a report on the 
Directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India in terms of Section 
143(5) of the Act: 

Ill) Further to our comments in the annexure referred to in the paragraph above, as 
required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
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a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by 
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow 
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the 
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act; 

e) in terms of Notification no. G.S.R. 463(E) dated 05th June 2015 issued by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, provisions of Section 164(2) of the Act regarding 
disqualifications of the Directors, are not applicable as it is a Government Company;. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure C". Our report expresses an 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's 
internal control; and 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us: 

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 
position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note no. 34 para 1 to the 
standalone financial statements; 

ii) The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses against long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts and thereby requirement for making provision 
in this respect is not applicable to the Company; 

iii) There have been no amounts which were required to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv) As per notification number G.S.R. 463(E) dated 5th June, 2015 issued by 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, section 197 of the Act as regards the managerial 
remuneration is not applicable to the Company, since it is a Government Company. 
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v (i) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other 
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or 
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 

(ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other 
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company 
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

(iii) Based on such audit procedures we consider reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement. 

(vi) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the company. 

(vii) The company has not used accounting software for maintaining its books of account 
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility. 

UDIN: 22551913AILONL8684 

GUPTA PALWAL & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
FRN 028750N 

CA DHEERAJ KUMAR~ 
(PARTNER) 
M No 551913 

Date: 04.05.2022 
Place: Jammu 
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ANNEXURE-A 

Name of Unit: RATLE HYDROELECTRIC POWER CORPORATION LIMITED 

Disclosure for reporting of matters to be included in Auditor's Report as per 
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020. 

Place: 

(a) (A) whether the company is maintaining proper records showing full 
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and 
Equipment; 

REPLY : Yes. the company is maintaining proper records showing full 
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, 
Plant and Equipment; 

(B) whether the company is maintaining proper records showing full 
particulars of intangible assets; -

REPLY : Yes. The company is maintaining proper records showing full 
particulars of intangible assets; 

(b) whether these Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically 
verified by the management at reasonable intervals; whether any material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification and if so, whether the same 
have been properly dealt with in the books of account 

REPLY : As per the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Property, Plant 
and Equipment have been physically verified by the management once 
during the year which in our opinion is reasonable considering that 
company has been incorporated on 01.06.2022 only and no significant 
transactions have taken place so far. No discrepancies has been reported on 
such verification 

( c) whether the title deeds of all the immovable properties. (other than 
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are 
duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are 
held in the name of the company. If not, provide the details thereof in the 
format below:-
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Gross Held Whether 
Description Carrying m Promoter 

name 
of Property value of Director 

or their 
relative or 
employee 

NIL 

Period held 
indicate 
range 
where 
appropriate 

Reason 
for not 
being 
held in 
name of 
company 

Also 
indicate 
if in 
dispute 

Reply : The title of all the immovable properties disclosed in the financial 
statements rest in the name of the company. No leasehold land is there in 
the financial statements ending March 2022. 

d) Whether the Company has revalued its Propeliy, Plant and Equipment 
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year and, if 
so, whether the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer; 
specify the amount of change, if change is I 0% or more in the aggregate of the 
net carrying value of each class of Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible 
assets; 

REPLY No. The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and 
Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both 
during the year 

(e) Whether any proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the 
company for holding any Benami property under the ''Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act 1988 and Rules made thereunder; if so, whether the Company 
has appropriately disclosed the details in its financial statements; 

REPLY : No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the 
company for holding any Benami property under the "Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and Rules made thereunder. 

(ii) (a) whether physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable 
intervals by the management and whether, in the opinion of the auditor, the 
coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate; 
whether any discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of 
inventory were noticed and if so, whether they have been properly dealt with in 
the books of account: _,_""'"""'"""''''''• 
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REPLY : As informed, the inventories of the Company except for 
inventories in transit, have been physically verified by the management 
internally once during the year. 

(b) whether during any point of time of the year, the Company has been 
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, from 
banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets; whether 
the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks or 
i1nancial institutions arc in agreement with the books of account of the 
Company. If not, give details. 

REPLY : No, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits 
in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions 
on the basis of security of current assets 

(iii) whether during the year the company has made investments in, provided any 
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, 
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any 
other parties. If so, 

(a) whether during the year the company has provided loans or provided 
advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any 
other entity [not applicable to companies whose principal business is to give 
loans], if so, indicate-

REPLY : As per the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company during the year the 
company has not provided loans or provided advances in the nature of 
loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity 

(A) the aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the 
balance sheet date with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or 
security to subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. 

REPLY : Not applicable to company 

(B) the aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the 
balance sheet date with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or 
security to patties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. 

REPLY : Not applicable to company 

(b) whether the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the 
terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans 
and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company's interest; 
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REPLY: Not applicable to company 

(c) in respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans whether the schedule 
of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and 
whether the repayments or receipts are regular; 

~PLY: Not applicable to company 

(d) if the amount is overdue, state the total amount overdue for more than 
ninety days, and whether reasonable steps have been taken by the company for 
recovery ofthe principal and interest; 

REPLY : Not applicable to company 

(e) whether any loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen 
due during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to 
settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties; If so, specify the 
aggregate amount of such dues renewed or extended or settled by fresh loans and 
the percentage of the aggregate to the total loans or advances in the nature of 
loans granted during the year. [Not applicable to companies whose principal 
business is to give loans]; 

REPLY : Not applicable to company 

(f) whether the Company has granted any loans or advances in the nature of 
loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of 
repayment; if so, specify the aggregate amount, percentage thereof to the total 
loans granted, aggregate amount of loans granted to Promoters, related parties as 
defined ih clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 

REPLY : Not applicable to company 

(iv) in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security whether provisions of 
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with. If 
not, provide the details thereof. 

REPLY: Not applicable to company 

(v) in respect of deposits accepted by the Company or ammmts which are deemed to 
be deposits, whether the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the 
provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Comp;:tQ~~~,. 
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Act, 2013 and the rules ±l-amed thereunder, where applicable, have been 
complied with? If not, the nature of such contraventions be stated; If an order has 
been passed by Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or 
Reserve Bank of India or any comi or any other tribunal, whether the 
same has been complied with or not? 

REPLY : Not applicable to company 

(vi) whether maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central 
Government w1der sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act and 
whether such accounts and records have been so made and maintained 

REPLY : Not applicable to company 

(vii) (a) whether the company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues 
including Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, employees' state 
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of 
excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the 
appropriate authorities and if not, the extent of the atTea:rs of 
outstanding statutory dues as on the last day of the financial year 
concerned for a period of more than six months from the date they 
became payable, shall be indicated; 

REPLY : The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues 
including Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, employees' state 
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, 
value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate 
authorities 

(b) where statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) have not been 
deposited on account of any dispute, then the amounts involved and the 
forum where dispute is pending shall be mentioned. (A mere 
representation to the concerned Department shall not be treated as a 
dispute). 

REPLY : Not applicable in case of company 

(viii) whether any transactions not recorded in the books of account have been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under 
the Income Tax Act, 1961; if so, whether the previously unrecorded income has 
been properly recorded in the books of account during the year? 

REPLY: No 

(ix) (a) whether the company has defaulted in repayment of loans or other 
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender? If yes, the 
period and the amount of default to be repotied as per the format below: 
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REPLY : No. The company has not availed any loan from any lender 

(b) Whether the company is a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or other lender? 

REPLY : No. The company has not availed any loan from any lender 

(c) Whether tenn loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were 
obtained; if not, the amount of loan so diverted and the purpose for which it 
is used may be reported 

REPLY : No. The company has not availed any loan from any lender 

(d) whether funds raised on shoti term basis have been utilised for long term 
purposes? If yes, the nature and amount to be indicated 

REPLY : No. The company has not availed an)' loan from any lender 

(e) whether the Company has taken any funds from any entity or person on 
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint 
ventures? If so, details thereof with nature of such transactions and the 
amount in each case 

REPLY : No funds have been taken from any entity or person on account of 
or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures 

(t) whether the Company has raised loans during the year on the pledge of 
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies? If 
so, give details thereof and also report if the company has defaulted in 
repayment of such loans raised. 

REPLY : Company has not raised any loan during the year on the pledge of 
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies 

(x) (a) whether moneys raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) during the year were applied for the purposes for 
which those are raised. If not, the details together with delays or default and 
subsequent rectification, if any, as may be applicable, be repmied; 

REPLY : No money has been raised by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year 

(b) whether the Company has made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, patiially or optionally 
convertible) during the year and if so, whether the requirements of Section 42 
and Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with and the 
funds raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised. If 
not, provide details in respect of amount involved and nature of non-compliance 
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REPLY : No preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) has been 
made during the year 

(xi) (a) whether any fraud by the company or any fraud on the Company has been 
noticed or reported during the year: If yes, the nature and the amount involved is 
to be indicated; 

REPLY : No fraud by the company or any fraud on the Company has been 
noticed or reported during the year 

(b) whether any report under sub-Section ( 12) of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 with the Central Govemment? 

REPLY:- No 

(c) whether the auditor has considered whistle-blower complaints, if any, 
received during the year by the Company? 

REPLY : No whistle-blower compliant has been reported during the year 

(xii) (a) whether the Nidhi Company has complied with the Net Owned Funds to 
Deposits in the ratio of 1 :20 to meet out the liability 

REPLY : Not applicable to company 

(b) whether the Nidhi Company is maintaining ten per cent unencumbered 
term deposits as specified in the Nidhi Rules, 2014 to meet out the liability; 

REPLY : Not applicable to company 

(c). whether there has been any default in payment of interest on deposits or 
repayment thereof for any period and if so, the details thereof 

REPLY : Not applicable to company 

(xiii) whether all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 
177 and 188 of Companies Act where applicable and the details have been 
disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as required by the applicable 
accounting standards; 

REPLY : Yes. AU transactions with the related parties are in compliance 
with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act where applicable and the 
details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as required by 
the applicable accounting standards; ~~,, 
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(xiv) (a) whether the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the 
size and nature of its business? · 

REPLY : The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the 
size and nature of its business 

(b) Whether the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were 
considered by the statutory auditor? 

REPLY : Yes. The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under 
audit were considered by the statutory auditor 

(xv) whether the company has entered into any non-cash transactions with directors 
or persons connected with him and if so, whether the provisions of section 192 
of Companies Act have been complied with; 

REPLY : The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected with him 

(xvi) (a) whether the company is required to be registered under section 45-lA of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and if so, whether the registration has been 
obtained. 

REPLY: The company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA 
ofthe Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 

(b) whether the Company has conducted any Non-Banking Financial or 
Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) 
from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 

REPLY : The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or 
Housing Finance activities 

(c) whether the Company is a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined 
under the Regulations by the Reserve Bank of India? If so, whether it 
continues to fulfil the criteria of a CIC and In case the company is an 
exempted or unregistered CIC, whether it continues to fulfil such criteria 

REPLY : No, the company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as 
defined under the Regulations by the Reserve Bank of India 

(d) Whether the Group has more than one CIC as pm1 of the Group, If yes, 
indicate the number ofCICs which are part ofthe Group. 

REPLY: No. 

(xvii) whether the Company has incurred cash losses in the Financial Year and in the 
immediately preceding Financial year? If so, state the amount of cash losses 

~.~"7'":"""~"<::~·:~e·, . 
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REPLY: No 

(xviii) whether there has been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year? 
If so, whether the auditor has taken into consideration the issues, objections or 
concerns raised by the outgoing auditors? 

REPLY : No, there has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors 
during the year 

(xix) on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of · 
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the financial statements, the auditor's knowledge of the Board of 
Directors and management plans, whether the auditor is of the opinion that no ' 
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when 
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 

REPLY : In our opinion and according to the information and explanations · 
given to us by the Management of the company, the company is capable of· 
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they 
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date 

(xx) (a) whether, in respect of other than ongoing projects, the company has · 
transferred unspent amount to a Fw1d specified in Schedule VII to the . 
Companies Act within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial 
year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of . 
the said Act. 

REPLY : Not applicable to company with respect to financial year 2021-22 

(xxi) whether there have been any qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective 
auditors in the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports ofthe 
companies included in the consolidated financial statements? If yes, indicate the 
details of the companies and the paragraph nwnbers of the CARO report 
containing the qualifications or adverse remarks 

REPLY: Not applicable to company 

UDIN: 22551913AILONL8684 

GUPTA PALWAL & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
FRN 028750N 
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CA DHEERAJ KUMA~ 
(PARTNER) 
M No 551913 

Date: 04.05.2022 
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ANNEXURE-8 

Directions indicating the areas to be examined by the Statutory Auditors during the course 

of audit of annual accounts of (Name of Unit) for the year 2021-22 issued by the 

Comptroller & Auditor General of India under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013: 

51. 
No. 

Directions Auditors' Reply 

1 Whether the Company has system in According to the information and 

place to process all the accounting explanations given to us and based on our 

transactions through IT system? If yes, audit, all accounting transactions are routed 

the implications of processing of through Microsoft Office system. Period end 

accounting transactions outside IT Financial Statements are compiled offline 

system on the integrity of the based on balances and transactions 

accounts along with the financial generated from Microsoft Office system. No 

implications, if any, may be stated. IT software such as ERP/SAP is available with 

the company. 

We have neither been informed nor we have 

come across during the course of our audit 

any accounting transactions having impact on 

the integrity of the accounts along with the 

financial implications which have been 

processed outside the IT system. 

2 Whether there is any restructuring of According to information and explanations 

an existing loan or cases of given to us and based on our audit, there is 

waiver/write off of no case of restructuring of an existing loan or 

debts/loans/interest etc. made by a cases of waiver/write off of debts I loans I 
lender to the Company due to the interest etc. made by lender to the Company. 

Company's inability to repay the 

loan? If yes, the financial impact may 

be stated. Whether such cases are 

properly accounted for? 
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3 Whether funds (grants/ subsidy etc.) According to information and explanations 

received/receivable for specific given to us and based on our audit, no funds 

schemes from Central/State agencies (grants/ subsidy etc.) from Central/State 

and its agencies were properly agencies has been received/receivable to the 

accounted for/utilized as per its terms company. 

and conditions? List the cases of 

deviation. 
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ANNEXURE-C 

ANNEXURE "C" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements' of our report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under 

Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 

Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ratle 
Hydroelectric Power Corporation Limited ("the Company") as of 31st March, 2022 in 

conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 

on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 

financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 

by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 

adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 

and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 

financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 

"Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the 

Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable 

to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 

reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 

material respects. 
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 

the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 

obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 

the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 

depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system 

over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 

reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 

records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 

accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on 

the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 

subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 

policies or procedures may deteriorate. -~···' 

RHPCL- Annual Report 2021-2292



Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 

with reference to financial reporting and such internal financial controls with reference to 

financial reporting were operating effectively during the FY ended on March 31, 2022, 

based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by 

the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

UDIN: 22551913AILONL8684 
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
FRN 028750N 
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M No551913 
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